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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholeers of National Petrochemical Comrpany (A Saudl coint Stark Cormpany)
Repert or the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinian

We Fave aLdited L-e consolidated firancial statemrants of Nationa! “etrachem cal Cempany, A Saud Juint
Stock Companiy (ha Compary™) ang its subsidiaries (colectively reterrec to as “the Group™, which corprse
the consolidated stater-ort of finzncial position a¢ at 31 Decerder 2019, and f1e consulidated statermant of
income and cther comprzhensive ‘ncome, corsgiideted statemeant of chatges in eqdity and corsclicated
statemert cf cash flaws far the year then endad, and notes {5 the consclidater finame'al stataments, ir.chuding
a surerery of signi’ 2ant eccount'ng policies.

I 0ur cpivion, the accompanying censolidaled financ al statemants present fairly. imall material respects, the
consctidated financial posticn of lie Sroup as at 21 December 2019 and its cunsoidated financial

performance and ‘1s conselidatec cash fiows for the year then e~ded in accordarce with Intcrnatioral

Finzncial Reporting Standards that are erdorsed i1 the Kirgdom of Ssudi Arabia z0d otrer standerds and
oronounzemeants that arc issued by the Saudi Organizatior for Certifiae Public Accounlants.

Basis for Opinion

Ve concucted ocur audit in accordsnce with International Standa-cs on Auditing that ga-e encorsed in the
Kingdom o Saudi Arsbia. Jur responsibilit'es under those siardards are furtker described ir the Auditor's
Resoonsihilities “or the Audit of the Conse idatzd Financial Siztements section of ou- report. ‘We are

independent of the Grous in azcordance witk prafassional cade of conduct and ethics endorsed ir the
Kingdam of Saud® Araaia that are relevant to o.ur audit of lhe consuolidated “irancial statements, ard we have
futilled our other etnical resconsibifities in accordance with these requirements, We tzlieve that the audi
evicence we have odtained is sufficenl gnid aparop-iate t¢ sravice a basis for ou- ofinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mast s gn ficance inour sud'l
cf the consotdatad financial stater-ants of tha cutrert period, These matters were addressed in the context of
c.raLdtaof the conscidaize financia staterments as a whole, ard in ferming our cpinion therean, and we do
nat provide a geparate opinian on these matters. For eaca <oy aacil matier belew, cur descripfion of now ou-
audt eddressed the natter is orovided in that context,

We nave fulflicc the respensikilities described i1 the Audite-'s responsibilitizs for the audit of the consol'datad
fnancial statesments sezton of odr Fenort, including in relabion to Ehese matters. Accerdingly, cur audit
included te perormance of procaedures designed Lo resaond to our assessmrent of Fe risks of materia’
msstatemen: ¢ the consoiidated financial statements. The results of our audit wrocecures, inciuding the
Frocedures performed o acddress toe matters below. provide the basis for our aucit opinion an the
azcormrpanying conselidatec finatwia! statements.
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INCEFEMDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

(276}

e the sharetoldars of National Petrochernical Company (A Saudi Jaint Stack Company?

Repart on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Uncertain Zakat Position

The Comary fles ite cakat returns with the General Author'ty
of Zakat anc Tax ("CAZT™ on an annual Dasis. Tre GAZT
raised assessments ior the years f-om 2011 to 2013 claimivg
acdit onal zakat l'ability of SR 95.5 million. ihe Company has
fled an appes| ageinst the additicnal zakat ‘iabflizy with the
Preimirary Appeal Committee { PAC"). Subsequenchy, the
Company receivec -evised zakat assessments lur Lhe years
from 2011 fo 2313 from the GAZ| claiming addit onal »akat
iabiiity of 55 & ¢4 million. The Comrpany accepted anc paid SR
3.47 millivn and filed an appeal for the rematning balancze SR
2.27 wlion with t~2 Higher Appoal Committes 2FACT ane
the HAC's hear ng is awailzg,

The CAZLT rafsed an assecsment for the years from 2014 ta
216 ciaimng addilional czkat fatility of SR 2542 millor.
Tae Zompany has filed an annaal against the additioral zakat
lisbility with iFe Sraliminary Appeal Commtzes ("FATYY ang
the PAC's hearing is awaifed.

Tne Group's management Gel'eves that the provision =ade i
the consolidated statemen:s of finarcial position is adequate
to cover any additieral zekal liabiiiy that meay arise f-om
GAZT.

we considerad this as a koy audis matter as it invalves
significart maragemont judgment, 2nd the related addit onal
assessmenls by GAZT ard related zakat provisicns ase
material 1T the consolidatec firanc’zl statements.

We perfarmeg tne fol owing procecures in
relatior te the additional asscssod rekat
lizhiy anc relatad zakat p-ovisions:

® Eyvalusted the approoriateness of the zakat
proy sior provided by the Group given the
related 7a<st assossments issued by CAZT
‘or afl yoars uncer appea’ and for the years
wh'cstill under CAZT's review;

Gainzd an underslardirg of the [rocess
ihar management fallowed to assess the
impact of the assessmerts and the regsons
for suzh differences between the positions
of the Company ard GAZT:

Parformed  a retrosgpective  review  of
managerment's udgerent ~elated to simiar

czeos in prior periods;

* Tocether with sueciatists
evallgted  tha  reasonacloress gf
management’s  assessmenl  for e
accounting of the uncertain zekat sasition
i the light of 7akat regulations, recent
practices o GAZ™ and mearits of the appea
‘iled with GAZT against the assessments
rased; anc

in our tezm,

® fissessed fhe app-opriatensss of the
d'sclosure  made rzlation  to  the
assessments igsued by GAZT in respezt of
£laiming zddtional zakat liabilisy ard the
skatus of the related apprals.

it
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tothe shareholcers af Nsticnal Petrachemical Cempany (A Saud! Joint Steck Company)

Report on the Audit of the Conselidated Financial Statements (continued)

Kev Audit Matters (continues}

The key audit matter

How Ine matter was addressed in our audit

Adoption of IFRS 16

As of 1 Janaary 2019, IFRS 16 { ersas) becamz efective,
IFRS 18 requres the Group to assoss all its lease contracts
and ~ecognize dapreciation, righ: of use ard the ease lHanility.

The managemert parformed a cetailed aralysis of 2azh lease
conlracr to identify the differences between the requrements
of the o d and new standard, dentify the changes required Lo
be madc to exist ng accounting oclices anmd determine ths
transition  adjustments and consequenticl  nanges  to
processes anc ¢onrols required pardicu a2riy 'n cornaction with
ide~tificatior of whether an arrangement rmeets tho definition
of 3 lease,

This standard introdutos a simyle 2ssee accaunting model anc
requres a lessce o recognze assets ard ligh'ltes for al
leases with 4 term of mare than L2 months. yqless e
undeelyirg asset it of icw value. A lessee is requirec o
recagize = cight-of-use {"ROU™ asset representing its right to
use the underlying asset ard z lease liakility represenling ifs
obligation to ma<e leaze paymerts.

The Group has chosen Lo apply IFRS 16 “Leoases” under the
modifed retrospective apornach, Lnder  the
¢compasalive  consolidatec fnancizl
intorrration is nat restated wne cortinues to be reportad under
the e ccounting standards ir efect For those pariods.

madified
ratrossective met-od,

WMa-agernent also assessoc the diszlosure reguiremrents of the
naw afandard to be made in che consolidated 4inancial
statemenis.

We considered this as a key aucis matter bearaize the
calcu atiors of gmounts underlying the rigat of use zssets ane
taz correspendirg lease liabilities nvoive now processes for
colecting datz, compex rules and the applzaton of
significant management judgmenl.

We performad the folowing procedares in
“elztion toe the sdoption RS 161

* Reviewesd —1anagement’s assessment of the
impact of IFRS L& ir terms of the
tlassidication ane measurernent o ts righs
of use assets and lease ianilities, and
understood the approach taken lowsrds
implerentation;

® Assessac the accuravy of the lease data oy
testing cn a semple basis, the lease data
captwred by managemert through ke
inspaction of lcass documenss;

Tested fease schedules an a sample basis,
oy "ecaleu'at’ng the amaunts Lnderiving e
fight of use zssess and dcase iabilities,

pased on the terms on Lhe legse contracts.
We also tested the a-ithmetical accoracy of
those individual leaso schedules:

* Evaluated the accurscy of the discount
rates applied in {re computation of ke
imasea liakiity ohbiigations; and

» Assessed Lhe adequacy of the Group's
distlosure neluded in the cconsolldated
finane sl statemnents ir retation ite
‘mplarnentation of the new standard.

)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the shareholcers of Nat'onai Petrochemical Campany (A Saudi Jcint Stock Cormpany

Regort an the Audit of the Consolidated Financial $tatements (continued)

Other information included in The Group's 2019 Annual Report
Other information consists of the irlorration included ir <he Sroup's 2015 anrual repart, ather than Lhe
consolidated financial staterrenks and aur auditor's ~eport <Ferezn. Marage=ent is respansible for the cthe-

Inforemation ir its znnual rexort. The Grawp's 2019 annual report is expected to b2 mace available to us after
the dzte of -h's auditer's ~cport.

Our opinion an the consolidated finanicial stalements does nat zover the ather information ang we <o ot
express any form of assurarcsa corclusicn thereor.

In corneclicn with ou- audit of the consolidated financia® stalemerts, cur resposibi My iz 1o read the other
infomstion icentified above when it becomes wvailable and, in dong so, considzsr whatker the other
informzticn is materially incorsisient with the cansalidated <inancial statearnts or ou- krowledge chbtainad in
the sudit, or ortherwise appes-s to be materially misstated.

When wo reed the Group's 2019 annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstaternon: “kerein,
we e required ty zormunicate the matter to these charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance far (he Consolidated Financial
Statements
Managerrent is respansibie for the preparat o1 and ‘air presen:aticn af the conso idated financial stataments
ir acoordance wit Inte--ationa! Financial Regorting Stardards thel are ardorsse i~ <te Kingdom of saudi
Aratie and other stancards and prencuncenrents that are issued by the Saudi Drganizetion for Cert'fied “utlic
Leeantants ase the orovisions of Comparies' Law a~d Campary’'s By-laws, and fer such interma coatre. as
management determines 's recessary Lo enable the preparaticn ¢F consclidated financial staternents the: are
freo from material misstaterment, whather cue to fraugd or er1or.

I7 oreparing the consslicated finarcal statements, iranagemen: is respansible for assessing the Group's
dlrlity to cortinue &s s coing conzern, cisclesing, as appl'cabe, mattos related to Joing consern anc using
the gaing concorn 2asis of accsunting unless manzgement ¢ ther inlznds ta iguidate the Groug cr to c2asc
aocratiaTs, or has no realistic a‘'ternativa kot to do so.

Those charged with gove-nance w2 responsinle for overseeing tha Group's firancial reparting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consalidated Financial Staterenss

Qu- object'ves are to qotals “ezsonable assurance about whather tho censclidated fnarcial statemnerts s a
whale are free from material misstatement, whether duz to {reud or errcr, end to issuz an augitor's reporc
that includes our opirian. Reasanatle assurance s a -igh level of assu-znce, but is not a guarantee zFat an
aJdit cond.zted in accardance with Interaational Standards on Auditing tha: a-e endcrsed in the Kirgdurn of
Saudi Arasia wil always deect a malerial misstatement when 't exists. Misstaterneats can arise from fraud or
errar anc are cors'deras melerial if, individual v ar in the aggregate, they could reasarab y ba expecioc to
‘nflusnce the econzmic decisions of usars taken on the basis of these consclidated firancial statementes.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
"o the sharcholders of Mational Pet~ochemical Cumpany (A Saudi Joint Slock Camnpany

Report on the Audit of the Censolidated Financial Statements {continued)

Auditar's Resnorsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an avdit in acca-dance with International Standards on Auditicrg that a~e endorsed In the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. we exercise professional judgmert and maintain orofessional skepticism thraughaul the
audit. We also

identity ana assess the risks of material misstateren: of ths consolidatae firansial statements,
whether due o fraud or errgr, design anc oerform aud't pracedu-es rosponsive to those risks, and
osbtain aud 1 ev'dence that is sufficienl and cppropriate to provice = basis tor cur opinion. Tha risk of
rot detecting a naterial rmisstatenent resuting fram frawd is Figher Fhan far one resulting from erraor,
as fraud may tvo ve cellasion, ‘ergery, intootional omissions, misrepresentatiors, or the override of
internal control,

Obtain an urderstanding of interna cantrol relevanl wo the avdil in orde to design sudit precedures
thal dare appropriate in e ciscumstances, tut not far the aurpnse af axpressing an aninian on the
erertiveness of the Grouys internal control.

Fualjate the appreprateness of accourting policies used a~d the reascnab eness of accouniing
cstimates and related d sciasures made by management.

Canzlude an the appropr ateness of managemert's use of L= going conzzem basis of accounting ard,
Lased oo the audil evidesce chlained, whether ¢ materiel unce-tairty exists relzted to events or
cend'tions that may cast significant dount on the Group's alzlity fo cantinue as a goirg concerr 1 we
ronctuze that a material uncertainty existz wa are required to craw attention in cur aucitor's report
to the related cisclosures in the consolidated firanciel staterrents o, ¥ such disclosures are
iracequate, 5 madify eur apnizr. Our corz’usians a%e hazed on the augis evidence obtained up tao the
date of qur auditor's rapert. |awever, future events or co~ditions mav cause the Group to tease to
continue as @ gaing concern.

Zvaluate the overall presentation, stracture and contont 9° the consolidzted financial statements,
nelucing tha disclosu-es, and whakher the carsalidated financia stataments represent the undzsrlying
transactions and everts in a manner that achiswes “air prasastat’'sn,

O6tdin sutliziert azpropriate audit evidence regard ng thz financial informatior af the entities ar
husinass activities within the Group o exoress an opnicn on the consolidated finoncial statements, We
are resporsible foo the direction, supervs cn ard perio mance of the grouo audit., We reman so ely
responsisle fo odar ausit opirion.

We ommuricate with thosa charged with governance regard ng. arrong othzsr matters, the plannec scops and
“reing of the aucl end sigrifizant acdit findings, rolucing any sig-ifzant defiziengizs in internal cantral that
we identiy dur ng our zudiz.

We also provide those chzrged with gavernance with a statemeart that we hzve comolied with relevant ethical
requicerrents reqarcing inde sendence, and to communicate wth therm all ~elationships and other mraizers tnat
may reasonakly be thouccht Eo bear cn cur ‘ndesenderce, and where apzlizabia, “elated safsguarcs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Ta the sharchalders of Natioral Petrocherrical Comzany (A Saudi Joini Stock Compary)

Report or the Audit of the Censolidated Financial Statements (continued?

Auditor's Respensibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continusd)

From the matters cormmunicated with those charged with goverrance, we detarming thoss matters that were
of mast significa<ce ir {7e audit of the consclidated financial statements of the curreni pericd and a'e
therefore the key audit matters. We describe tlese matters in our auditer's -epert unless law or reculaticn
precludes pub.ic disclosure about the matter or when, in ext-emely -zre circumsfances, wa determine that a
matter should not be co~municated in our report because the adverse consequencos of doing so would
reascnably be expectec bo outweigh the public inferesl benefils cf such cammunication.
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National Peirochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and

its subsidiarics

CONSOLIDATED STALVEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITTON

As at 31 December 2019

ASSETS

MNON-CURREMNT ASSTTS
Proparey, plast A coui powe
Righi ol use asset

Ewmployucs® louns

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSEES
CITRRENT ASSETS

Trads reoeivables

Lnveriorncs

Prepayments and other recelvam.es
Amenmts due from ezlated partics
Clash and cash equivalenis
TOTAT. CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

FOQUITY AND TTARILITIES
EQUITY

Shars capital

Sletutury resamys

LKelwined carnires

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 10O THE SHAREIEOLDERS

OF THE CONPANY

om-carsolling inloresis
TOTAL FQUITY

TIABILITIES

NON CLRRENT TIARITLITIES

Term lpauy

Non-currelling purtner's sabardinated laen
Non-current port or of Tease Habilily
eferred ey lizhilities, rer

Conployees’ benelis

TOTAL NON-CTRRENT LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payalles

Aol G w telated parties

Current purtion ol erm Joans
Sukuk-cur-ent portian

Crarrent parcion of Tease liahiliry

Acerued expenses and other pesables
Zutkat Al ineame ta arovisions

TOTAL CUTRRENT LIABILLTIES
TOTAL LIABILIIIES

TOTAL FEQITTY AN TARBILITIES

LChairman of the Board of Directors

Hamad Al Savari

Ihe attached notes © ot 35 form part of these consclidated financial statements

(4]
11

-
i

13
11

13
19
21
24

ble)
£

Designated member
Abdulrahman Alismail

2019
SR Ong"

2018
SR 0"

14,175,145 15,019,709
69,280 -
138,978 138 464
11,383,423 15,118,173
Y1497 1,03538
917,503 [10%,457
83,357 256.922
137,226 221326
2,485,617 3,251,537
4,632,300 5,870,624
19,015,723 21,018,797
4,300,000 4,804.000
415,317 347870
1,931,677 2392311
8,147,994 7,740,781
4,101,801 3,648.431
12,244,795 11,388,612
3435135 4,820,920
182,696 413,927
52,007 -
326,273 311,055
231,162 163,087
4,127,363 5,738,989
203,467 37.962
208,054 209,581
1210425 1371772
- 1L.U78,000

12,917 -
3742 605,204
565,878 585.677
1,534,565 1.891.19
6,765,928 9,630,185
14,015,723 21.018.797

Chiel accounlani.

Marzoug Al-Shamari




National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its

subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOMIT AND OTHER COMPREIENSIVE INCOME

For the wear ended 31 December 2019

Salus
Cosr ot nales

GROSS PROFIT

Selling and distrioution exnenses
(eneral 2nd administrative expamses
OPERATING PROFIYT

{Other income, net

Finance costs

INCOME BEFORE ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

Zakot and incume L
Lurrend fux
Darerred o
bt
NETINCOME FORTYHE YEAR
NET INCOMFE FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
- Sharchelders of the Company
= Non-conrrollirg interests

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS5) INCOME

Rc-measarcment (1oss) gein on detined beneti pluns

TOTAL COMPREHENSTYVFE INCOME FOR THL YEAR

TOTAT. COMPREIFASIVLE INCOME FOR THE Y EAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

- Stareholders of the Compary

- Non-controlling interests

FARNINGS PER SITARE FORY NET INCONME (Sandi Riyals)

Number of shaces ostending {in theusands)

Busic and Lilnted sacuings per share atliibuable G the slarchiolGes

ol the Commany

Chairman of the Board of Ditectors |

ITamad Al Sayari Abdulratiman Alisipail

The atiached nates 1w 36 rm pact o these consolidaied lmancial stalomernis,

Designated memnoer

Mie

24
gl
24

L7

I
I~

30

2019 2018
SR D00 SR "000"
7,434,705 8930414
(5,558,716) (6234 939)
1,875,989 2,685,455
{421,931) (471.a18)
{L74,580) (205.001)
1,279,478 2,008,836
98,160 IO
(221,326) {309,373)
1,156,312 1931111
(52,133 (97,126
(15,218 (35,015}
{70,800} (V8,620}
L8161 1,700,350
674,470 1,165,382
A43.6H 534,068
1,018,161 1,700,350
(40,649) 25,151
077,512 1.728.50:
647.813 1,183 630
329,699 544 821
977,512 1,728 5001
480,000 480,000
1.41 243

Chlef wecountant

Marzoug Al-Shamari
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National Petrochemical Company (Pctrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and

its subsidiarics

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Cash flow from operating activitics
Incame before sukat and income tax
Adjustrmenis f@ reconcile income before zakat and fncome tax fo pet
cash flows frone operations:
Depreciziion of propesty, plaot and cquipment
[precietion of right=ol-us: assels
Acjasiment of propery, olant and equipme;
Financs costs
Emplovzes’ benelits, net

He-messurement sair on noe-conlro ling partner's suboardinated lozr

Gair, on dispusad of property, plant and squipmen:

Working capital adjustments:
Trude roceivables
[hveriories
Emplovees' Joans, prepayinents ang other receivables
Amouts due [Tom relaten partics
Amonnts duc o ralated partics
Treade puyables
Accrizd expenscs and other pavablos
Nef cash flows from operations

I'Inarze costs paid
Zaleal znd meome tay peid
Net cash flows fram operating activities
[nvesting uctivities
Additions o property. plerl and ecuipment
Additions to right fo cse
Netmiverent in short wemn deposits
Procesds tro disposal of property, plant and equi pment
Net eash Mows (used in) from investing activities
Financing activities
Net movement: in term loans
RKepiyment o f Sukylk
Repayment of nom-contallicg partner's subordinglel loan
Inceme tyx relinbareed by non-controlling Durtner
Payment of (case Labilitics
Dividends zaid
Net cash Muws used in Tinancing activities

Mvet {decrease) increase in cash and eash cquivalents
Cash and cash eqnivalents at the heginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The attached notes 1 to 36 farm part of these consalidated financial statemeants.

Mede

9 2018

SR 000" SR Connt
1,156,312 1,931,111
866,117 1,715,474
206,370 -

- 4 881

221,326 39373
27,426 23,859
(5,508) -
{9G8) (68)
2,285,084 3,380,580
129,283 73,565
187,654 {12,319
148,832 {188.036)
{15,%00) 7184
£1,527) {27.782)
165,505 C1H1,005)
(267,380} 214,360
2.63(,553 1,272,347
(205,568} {230 434)
{142,732} (90,371}
2,143,253 2922337
(32,8023 {69.103)
(L13) -

- 358,000

12,197 0%
{20,718} 288,965

(1.583,291)

(1. 773.604)

(1,078,000 (122 00
{236,250) (d26.250)
123,671 66,270
{14,585) .
(240.,008) (240,000
(3,028.455) (2,515,584
{765,920) 695,718
3,251,537 2. 355 81
2485617 3,251.337
{continued)
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and
its suhsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED $STATEMENT QF CASIIFLOWS {continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2014
Mo SR 000 SR QoG
Non-cash iransactions
Acorted finunce cost on pon-cenrelling paricer's subordinated Joas 10,527 42,146
Amortization o iransaction costs on e ouns 3,159 5400
Remzasuremens {Joss) zain on delined benelit plans (40,64 2B 131
Amounts recoguised us vighi o use asset and lease lighility 514 -
Amounts recopnised as right of wie aszet and lease lighility when
applyirp IFRS 16 77017 -
Amounts recogrised as right of wse asset when applying TFRS 16
whick dedncted “rom srepayvments 12,019 -
Acerued interest om loase Lanilities 1072 -
Net amourt of not-cash maverent in acorucd iameres: - 2343
Chaivman of the Board of Direclors Designated riember _ Chisfaceountant
Mamad Al Sayari Abdualrabman Alismail Marzoug Al-Shamari

The attzched notes 1 ta 35 farm part of these consolidated fir ancial statements.
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Nautional Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and ifs
subsidiarics

NOIES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

A 3] December 2019

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

National Perechemical Company (Petrachem] ("the Company™ is a Seudi Joint Stock Company registered under Contmrercial
Registration Number 1010246363 issued in Rivadh v 8 Rubic 11429 1 (comespending o 16 March 20081, and it was
eslablished pursuani to the Miristry of Commerce and Indusiey's mesolution romber 330 dated 16 Safar 1429 1 (co srespending
w23 Pehruary 2008).

ke accompanying consolidated financlal ssaements include the activitizs of the Company and s following subsidiuries
feollectively referred to as “the Group”):

Country of Perceatage
incorporation  of ewncrship _
Saudi Polyiners Company (A imited Liablity Company’ Saudi Arabia 3%
Urited Arab
Gul T Folvimers Distribrtior Company (A Free Zome Limited Lishility Company? Enirates £3'%

Haudl Polymers Company s a limied Fability company registored in Jabuil, Scudi Arabia under Commercial Registation
umber 2055008886 dated 29 Dhul-Qudah 1428H (carresponding to 9 December 2007). with a branch in Jabul] aader
Conmerela] Regisiration number 2055009065,

Durirg the vew ended 31 December 2019, tae narners of SPCO have resolved o decrease the share cepiiel of SPCO trem SR
4,800 m:illion 1o SR 1,406 million. The lepal process for the reduciion in capital Bas rot boan completed till the year end.

Gulf Polymers Disuribution Compeny F2CO wes lurmed i the 130l Arport Free Zane on 15 February 2011 us per DAFZA
tradue liczmse, The registered addiess of the compary is Duhal Alrpant ree Zone, Oflice Ne.bEA 4241, Dubui, Tinited Aras
Lirirares.

The Group is engeged in develesment and eslabiisient. opuration and management and maintenance of” petrochemical
tactatics, gas, peraleum and vilwr industries, wholesale and retall ‘rale in material and pesrochemical products and its
lerivalivin,

2 BASTIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated “nancial staternents o the Group have been prepared in accordance with te Intematioral Finuncial Reporting
Stendards (*IFIRE7} thal are exdozsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabiu (“KSA'Y ind othe standards and pronauncements that
arw issucd Ty Saudi Orgenization Loz Cenified Punliz Azecuniants (“SOCPA™ (eollectively referad 1o ae “tFRSs us endorsed in
KSA"). These conso'idated fingngia. stalements have been prepared in aceordanie with the [VRSs &3 endorsed in KSAY

The accounting policles adopted in the preparation of the consolidaled Mnancial stelstents ure consisent with thnse Tnllawad in
the preparatinn of te Group's snnual consolidated fimancial statemerts for the year ohded 31 Decomber 2018, cxcept for <he
adoption of new stadunls offective as of 1 Janvary 2019 {notc 51 The CGroup mas not carly stopled any olther standard,
interpretation or amendment that has beer issazd but is net yot elfeclive.

‘The Group has adopted TFRS 16 "Leases” from | January 2014 and ascounting policies Tor 1h's new stancasd is disclosed in
wole 3.

22 RBasis of measurement

The conselidated finaashl siatemuents arc prepared under the historicd cost conventinn using the accruals mas’s of accounting,
For cuployee ind nther post-comployment berefits, actiarial presear value calealztions ars used.

The consulidaed financial stalements are prosented 19 Sacdi Riyals (SR), which is also he Tunctivi, currenoy of the Groan
cagaepl Lor the Gul? Palymers Distr’baion Company ZZC0 which is wranalated in these consolidaed finercial statement Trom
LS Dollar eurency to Sawdi Riyels currerey wn a fixed rase of SR 375 1o 1 US Dollar. Al valuss are rounded o (he nearest
thovsand (SR 0007, excepl when othurwise indigcatad.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOLTLS TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A3 Degember 20709

2 BASLS O I"REPFARATIONS (continned)

23 Basis of consalidation

The conselidated Tnancia. statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiarics as «t 31 December
2R Controd s achieved swhen the Group s exposad, or has righis, to varianle retans Bom its involvement with the investee

and has the aibi ity t affect those reums through its poswer over te Brvestee. Specilically, the Griap conlrols an invesles il and
omly if, te Croup has:

a) Power over the investoe (Lo, existing tights that give I the suerent ability o direct the relevant activitics ol Lhe investee);

b Exposurc, oo rivhis, w variable retures from its involverent with the investee: 2nd
G) The abilioy 10 use its pover over the imeestes o azTee! T Telams.

Generaly, there {5 & prosumption that a major'ty of voting rights resulls in control. 1o support this preswtption and when che
Group has Tess than a majority of <he voling or simizar fights of &n nvestee. the Group cocsiders al' elevanl facts and
circumslances in assessing shother it has power over an Ievastee, incliding:

a} Thooontracual arrangement(s) with e other vote Tolders of Lhe fnvestee:

by Rlghty arising from other contractual arrangiments;

¢y TRe Croup's veling rights and potential voting rghts.
The roup re-assesses whether ot not it controls an lavestee it facts and circinstances indicate that there are changes t ooe or
e of the three elements of conttol, Comsolidativn of u subsidiary begins when the Group obtaing centrol over the su=sidlany
and coeses when the Grouy luses contmol uf the subsidiary. Assets, Labilities, income and experses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included In the consolideted financial statements from the date the Groun gains cornlrol urtil the
dute the Griup ceases o conlrel the subsdiary.

Pratt or loss and cacl componart of OCL are attributed to the sharcaolders of the Compuny ol the Group and 1o the nen-
rontrolling *nteresss, ever 1f this results in the non-controlling inferests having a deficlt ba.ance, Wher necessary, adjusiments
are made w the financiel statements of sabsidiaries Lo bring (eir ascounting pelicios Tn ling with the Group’s accounting
policies. All ‘rima-Choup assets and Habilites, cquity, income, expenses sed cush Nows zelating w transactions beswveen

members of the Croup are 2liminated i {ull on corselidation.

A chenge in e owaiership Inlerest ¢l a subsZdiory, witheu: & loss of control, is accoanted for ay an equity transactior. Ifthe
Ciroup loses contral over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets Gneluding gaodwilll, Habibivies. nen-controlling interest

and other compoaerts af cquity, while ay resultant gain or loss is vecognised in procfit or loss. Any Invesiment retained is
rocopnised al fr value,

2.4 Approval of consolidated financial state meots
These consolidaled linwial stuleraenls wers approved on 10 Rajab 144 1H {correspording w3 March 2020).
3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS ANDJUDGMENTS

The preparztion of the Group's consuliduted finaacial slabanenls requires managerment to make Jjudgments, estimates and
assumptions thal atteel the reporled amounts ol revenues, expenses. assels and labilines, and Lhe disclosare of suningent
liabililies, at the renorting date, However, uncerta’nty about these assumprions and estimates coule esult in outeomes that ceuld
require o material sadjustren: 1o G carrving waounl of the asses or liability affectad In ke fmure. Otker disclogures relating o
Lhe Company's cxposure ko sks and unccrainties includes:

+ Capital tranagiemen L
+ Fiaarcal risk maragement anjectives and policics

Tn particnlzr, information about sipmifeant aeas of estimation, uncertainyy, and critical judgments in anplying accearing
olicies thar heve the most sigrilivant elfect on the amount resognized in the fingngial statementsy includes:

Tl Group uscs o prosvistor nubix e oalenlate expectzd crecit nsses °F } for trade receivables. The provision roics are
Thisol vn days past due for groupicgs of variows sustorier segrenis that nave similar 1oss patlems (.0, by geopraphy. produc:
1y pe, customet type and rating,
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National Perrochemical Company (Petrochem) {A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA LED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 31 Drecember 2014

3 SIGNTFTCANT ACCOQUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPT{ONS AND JUDGMENTS {continued)

These estimates and assumplions are basod upo cxpericree and varioss other facrars that arc belicved to be reasonahle cedar
the circamstances and are used o judge the carrying values of assets and liabilities that arv oot readly appurent from other
soaress, The esticales und urderlying wsumplions are teviewsd sm an ongoing basiz, Resisions W accounting estimates are
recognived i the peried in which she estimales sre revised or (o the rovisior period and fizmare seriods it the chanped cstimates
uffect both current and “wture periods except for the simificant rew judsments and ='gn
uncertaiites ralated w hoe applicalion of TFRS 16 s reentivned Delow ic note 5.

cant suurces ol estimzley and

31 Impairment of trade receivables

The prowision matrza i mitaly basel on the Group's hiswerical observed detall: rates, The Crroup will valibrate the matrix to
adjus: the historica: credit loss expericnee with (oeward-lookinge information. Fe- instance, it lorecasted economis conditions
(L. gress domestie product) are expeced (o deleriorats over £13 naxt vear which cac lead 10 an incressed number of defaulis
ir the manufacturice seoter, e historice] delaull rawes are ad’ustzd. ALevery renorting date, Cie Aisorical ohacrved delault ranes
are updated, anc changes in the forwerd-looking estimates are analysed.

‘The assessment of the corelation helween historical observed dafault rates, frecasted ceononie condilions and MECTS"™ s w
significant estirese. The wmound of BCLs s sensitive 1o changes i circumstances and of [orecasted ceconemic condilions, hc
Groun's Ristorical sredit loss expericnee and foreeast of coconemic carditions may aise not be represemative ol cuslomers’
actual default in the future.

3.2 Twpairmentl of inventories

Invemories are hel at the lower of cast and et realizable value, When inventories become old or cbsolete, a2 estmate 1s auule
of thedr ret realivable value. Por individually sipnificant amecils this eslimation i= performed on an irdividua. basis. Amounts
which wre nat individoally sigaifizzrl, but whizh are old or obaolete, are sssvssed collectively and a provision zpplied according
to the invenlory type and the degree of aging or odsolescence, tased on antdcinated selling prices,

37 Uselul lives of property, piaat and equipment

The management determines the esticvated aseiul lves of i eyl ipment fbr caleulsting depreciation. This estimate is desermined
wlier considering the expected usage of the azser or physical wear and war, Managemsnt reviews the residual value and uselul
fives arrually and fulcre depreciaticn charge woald be adjusted when the maragement belivves the aseful Thves difler from
priviaus ostimises.

34 Deferred tax asset’liabilities

The munagement cetermings the estimated fax effect of temporary differences betwean the carrving amounss of asses and
lizhilitics for linunuial reporting pumposes and the amonnea used for v purposes. Tuidgmen: by required @ ceiormine which
arrangements are considored o b aax on incorme a5 opposed te an uperating cost, Judgment is alse regquired to detarmire
wheiber delerred wax assols ane recognized in the stalement of finarcial position. Deferred tax assers, inelucing thase arising
rom autilied s losses, reguire management to assess che ikelitond than tic Group will generate suiTicien: laxable earnings
in heare perinds, in order (o Gtilize recognized deferred tax assets, Assunplions aboul the gencrzlion ol futurs laxasle profits
depend on tmanspuioenl's eslimates of luiure cash Hows. These estimates of futire taxable income we based on Torecasted cush
slows from operations and judgment abou? the aanlicution of existing tax laws ir each jurisdiction.

135 Impairment of non-financial asscts

Impairment exists swhen e carrving value of an asse? or cash gencrating aait (CCGT™ exceeds its recoverable amaent, which is
the higher of its fair vale less costs of dispesal and its value in use. The falr value less costs of dispusel calculalion is based on
svailable duta Tem binding sales lracsactions, vonducled at arm’s length, lor similar assels or observazle maeket prices less
nuremental costs Tor disposing of the asset, The value tnouse caleclution is based on a discounted cash ¥ ow (DCF) modeal. The
uush Lovs ure cerived from the budges for the next Tve yedrs and do not inelud s resoructuring activities that the Group is not yel
comnilted o or signilicant future iovestments Tyt will eohanee e asse’s performance of the (CGU)Y boing tested. The
“eeovernblo amoun: i sensitive t the discount rate used for 1ae DCL model as we.l as the expected ruture cash-"ntloss and the
growlh mate weed for extrapolation purpescs.
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Nativnal Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOTES 'O THE CONSOLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STAUEMENTS (continued)
AL 31 December 2019

3 SIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS ANDIIDGMENTS (cmtinues])
in Provisions

D3y their asture, provisions are dependent upon cstimates and assessments whether the criteria tor recomition have seen e,
including sstimates of he probability of cesh oulflows. Provisions [or tigalion are bzsed or ar estimate of ke costs, taking nto
wceounl legal advics and oter information presenily svailable, Provisions Tor uncertain liabitilies involws managemenl’s best
caliraale of whether cash owtflows are probable,

27 VYaluatian of defined benefit abligations

The cost of the defined benetic pensior plan and other post-emplayment madical benefits and the present value of the pension
obligation are dewrnioel wsing sowanal valuations. An actuarial valuation involves wneking varous assceniinns that may
differ from zemwal Jeveloptcnts in the tuee, These incleds the determination of the discount pate, Futuee salwy increases and
nther assumptions. 1ye to the complexitics involved in the va'uation ard its long-term nature, a cefined menctit abligation is
higaly sensitive to changes ir these assumptinms. All assiumptions are reviewed a* 2ach veporting date.

The parameter rost subjecl o change s the discount rate. I determining tie appropriate clscounl rate, managsment considers
e iverest kates of corpotate nonds i currensics congistent with the cir-eneies o7 the post-cnplayment Jenchit obligatior with
at leasl an “AA" raliny o ubove, as sl oy an inlernalicnally ackaowledsed raling ageney, and exirapuinied as needed alony the
vield curve to correspond witl he expecaed term of the defined bencfit obligation. The underlying bands are further reviewed
tor cuality. Those having exeessive credit spreads are excluded fram ~he analvsis af bands on which the disconnt rate is based,
an tae basis that they do not represen aigh qualizy corporate boads.

14 Determining the lease term of cuntravees with renewal and termination opfions

MManagamen: of the Group determines the lease erm g the run-cancellable term ol the [ease. together with any periods covered
by w1 option G exiend e lease 70S easonably certain B be exercised, or any pericds covered by an ontion to wimoinale the
L, 1711 15 rensonably cortain net o e exercised,

The Grewp hiay several lease contracts that inelude eatensiiom aod enninadon opbens. Fhe Group applics judisment in ovaluating
whethor 1% rzasonably cenain whether or not w exercise the oplion 10 renew or lerminate the lease, That s, & considers all
relewuil factors thal ereate an ceorunmie nwerdive foc o excrere sither e revewsl or wrminatdon. Afier the coruneneereci:
i, the Group reassesses 1oe lease w10 there 1s o slgrilieant event oz chisnge incirewmsiamess et s witkin its vontrel and
affects 115 ability wr excrelse o nol We exereise e option W0 renew o o werminals e, construction of sipnificant leaseheld
mprevemeats ot stamiicent caston seton o the T cased saset).

Feimaieg the Incramantl horeov ing rats

‘I'he Grovap cannot readily determine the interest rate impliciz in the lzese, theredire, it uses s ingrementa’ orrowing rale (1813)
with a similar security, the lunds necessary ¢ oblain an asse: of a similar value Lo the right-of-use: assel in g sim’lar econemic
crvirerrenl The |BR thurefore rellects whae tra Groep mwould huve o pay’, which regoires oslimutiom shen no obuervable
tales arc avdifable or when they coed o 2o adusted o wefleet the terms and conditeas of the lease. The Group catimaes (e
IBR using observeble inputs when available and (s recuired to make cerlain entity-specilic estimales,

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Current versus nen-current «lassification
The Oroup presents assets and Labilies it the conselidaled siatement of financial posidon based on currentner-cue-gnt
algusifenian, A geee s current wloen i1

o Expected 1o be realized or intended (6 be s0id or consumed in rormal cpareling cyele:

o Huld primari’y Zor the purzose o mading;

¢ Expuoctiod W be weallect witnn twilve nonths afler the resorting period, or

o Cash or cush eqaivadent wiivss rosuicled Drum being cxchanged or used o setile a Hability tor alleast vwelve menths afier

the reperting period,

All orkar aascts are olassiniod a8 ron-gurrant,

15



National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) {A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOTES TOTHE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
At 31 December 2019

4 SUMMARY OT STGNTFICANT ACCOLNTING POLICTES {(coutinned)
Current versus non-current classificativn (continued)

A ltabiliiy ©s current when:

o It7serpected to be seitled in rotmal opetaring cvele;

o Tt7sTeld primarily for the purpose o trading;

s Tt i due 1o be settled within twelve months afier Cie roporting period, or

« Theee is noamconditional right fo defor the setlemeat of the liakitiy for atlsast Gvelve monthy afler the reperting period.
Tae Grvup classilcs all ulbur Jebiites us ron-cueront,
Defeered tax nozeny and [ubil'tes arve closs’ fed as non-current asseis and Fasililies,

Eair value measurement

rivativis, sl non Soancial asses such s investment propertics, w fuir
value ol eack consoliduted statement of finsneiy position dete,

ke Grocp measures financial instruments such as
Latr value (s he price thal would bz received o sell an assel or paid W ransfer o Babiline in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the recasorement dare. The [alr value measurement is based or the presumption tha the trarsaction to sell
(ke asect or ransor the habiliy wkes plice cither:

a Intth2 princizal markel Tur the asset o Lubalily, or

+ [nthe absence ol e princizal market, in the mosl advartupeoas rarket 1oz the ssse or liability.

Ihe principa or the most advantageous marset mast Je accessinke by the Group.

The fuir value of @n asset or a liability is measured asing the assumplions thal market poricipants would use when pricing the
asset or Habilily, 2ssuming thut market participants 200 in their best ccoromic intersst

A [air value ressureronl af a nem-financ’al asset akes inte account a marken participant's ahility Lo genersle economic benefits
Ly Lsing the assct i its highest and best use or by selling it ro another markeet participant tat wouts use the assel in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuatien fechniques that are sppropoiote i the cizcumstances wnd for whick sulficient data are availeble 10
measare falr value, maxirizirg the use of relevant observable inputs and ninimizing the use of unobservable inpats.

All assets and Hazilities for whtick faic valie s measursd or disclosed in the consolidsted finansial statemenss are categorized
within the faile value hierarchy, deserinesd ws el ows, bused on the lowesl level inpul that s signilicenl to the Gair value
racasurEment 25 a whole:

Level | — Quoted funadjusted’ market prices In active markets Dor identical asscis or Jdabilites.

Level 2 Vaiwauon techaigues T which the lowest level inpul thas is signiticant t the fziv value measurement is dirgatly or
indireetiy nhservab_c.

Level 3 —Valuation eehaigues tor which <he lowest level inpuet that is cigniticant o the fir valoe paoasueonent 15 unohsemsahlc,

Zur aasts urd Cabilities that are recogmized I the consolidated financial statereents on a recu-r'ng bas's, the Gronn determines
whether translers have cccumred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing the categorization (based va the lowest level
Znpul thal s significart w the Zir vadue measarement as a whole) e the erd ol each reporting period.

The policies anud procedures for bath recucring lair value measwrsment are evaluaicd periodically.

Tor the purpose ol fair va_ue disclustres, the Group hes determiced Clusses of asscls and liabllities or the basis ol the nasure,
charactzrtstics and “iss ol the asset or Jdability and 17¢ level of the fair valLe hicrarchy &s cxplaines chove,
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TOTTIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued )

At 31 Decearbuer 2419

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cantinued)

Property, plaol and equipment

Praperty, plant @nd equipmert are initialy recorded at cost and staled &1 cost, net of accumulated deprezizsion ard accurnulaied
impairment “osses, iCanv. Sueh costingludes Ue ¢ost of replacing part of tae properiy, planl ar d eyuiprient and borowing casts
for lorg-tenm comstruction projects (quelitying asses), i the recognition ertaria are met. When sigrificant parts of property,
plant and equipmert are recuired to e replaced at intzrvals, the Group recognize sech purls s Trdividual wssets and depreciates
them sepazlely bused on their specii™e wsell Tives, Likewise, when a wajor inspection 15 perfimmed, its cost is recognized n the
carrying amount of the plant and cgquipment as a replacement i the recoanitar eriteria are saristied. All ofher repair and
maiftenance coses ure recugnined in the consolidated statement of income and viliet comprubiersive necine s» Incurred.

Depreciation s cufeulated from the dale tae item of property, plant and equipment @3 available for ig intended use or ‘n respech
of self conssructed asscls, from the date such asscts are zomplesed and ready #ar <he inended use, Asscts under constricton,
which are not ready fer iy Inlended vse, are nol depreciated, Furlyer, e cost of platinutn s ol devrecipded as plalizum i o
precious metal, aed the value of these assots does aot diminish wt the usage. The cost of other property, plant ard cquipment
is depreciated on & straighi-line basls vver the estimated wscful lives of the assets.

The ostimatad useful lives of the assels for the calealation ol depraciation ars ag follows:

OITiese buildings 35 wears
Pl and couaipment 10 10 23 vedry
turoiture, fxiure and o7 ee equipment A1 10 years
Moo vehicos 3 yedrs

Aniem of property, plans and equitrent iz derceognized upon disposa’ or when no [uiure bensfits are expected {ront its nse or
disposel. Any 2ain or Joss arling on derscogaiion of the assel {ualvulated as Wthe ditference between e net disposal proceeds
amd carrying ameun: of the asset) is included i ehe corsofidated statement of Jncome und other compreaensive income ™ the
it e asset iy derccognized.

Plerrae turnazonnt costs (printaily major repaic and rainlonusnes vosts) ars Jeferred snd amordzed over the period until the
date o next planned repair and maiaeaance. Should anexpected repair and mainteranes oceur prior to the previcusly envisagec
planned date, then the pravicusly unamortized costs are Imxedialely expensed and the new major repaiy and mainiznance costs
are tieferred and wmorized over the porind lilkely o bonet't from suc™ coss,

e assets’ resicdual values, uselul lives and melbiods of depreciaion of prinerty, plam and equipment are reviewed ar each
tinanzial vear end, avd adjusted prosacctively, iCapproprizte.
T.eases

‘I'he Group assesses at zontract inception whether a conteact is, or containg, a lease That iy, il the contract conveys Lhe right o
conlrol the use of an

iified agzetl for @ period of time in eschange {or censideration.

“The Groep applics a single recognition and mcusurement approsch tor wll leases, except for short-tem zases and Leases of low-
valie assets. The Group recognizes lease labilities to mabe lease payments and right-of-use assls representing the righl to use
the anderlyvieg assers.

Figi-ofituse aizels

The Group receprtizes righi-of-wse asaels al the commencement Cae of the lease G, 0w date the anderlying asses (s available
Tor use). Right-of-wse assels are mosswred &t cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment lasses, ard adjusted for
any remeasurerient of lease lahilities. The cosl of righl-oftuse assets includes the amount of “case linbilitios recognized, ininial
carerd cosly irenrmed, o Teose payrnents made acor belore e commencement dete, loss any lease incentives received. Right-of-
Lae gssets are deoreciated o @ straighl-line basis over the shorter of the Icase t=xm and the estinv ated wseful lives of t1z2 assets, as
tollows:

Land 4-30 veurs
Wurchouses 4 years
Li:uipmenly 4 years
Oftlees and meotor vehicles 3-4 years

1/



National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Sandi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMINTS {continued)
At 31 December 2015

4 SUMDMNARY Ol S1GNEFICANT ACCOUNTING IPOLICILES {cantinued)
1 .eases {continued)

Right-nuse assels Comtinned?

[Fowenership ol the Jeased asset trans

wrs o the Group at the end of the leass taem or the cost reflects the exercize of & purchase
opticr, depreciation s calculaed using the saimated wseful li% of the asset, The right-u[use wescts cre ulso subjoct w
Lnpairen.

feare Haniitiles

At the commercement dare of the 1ease. the Group recogrizes lease Liabililies meusured wl the prosem valie of luase payrents o
be made aver the lease wee, The Teese payments include Nxed payments (ineluding in-subsance 1ixed payments) less any leasc
[neentivus reezivable, variabls Jease payments that depend or an indev ora rate, ard amouns expected to be naid under residual
value puaranless.

Ir caloulaing he present valie of legse payments. the Group uses its incremental borrowing zute al the loase commuenuenszat
dute 1f' the interest rate implict: in the lease 35 not readily determinable. Afer the commercement daie, the amoant of lease
liabiities 1 inereased to retlect the accretiorn of intzrest and reduced tor the lease pavments made. [ additior, the camving
amourt ol lease lizhilities is remeasured if there is a medificetion, & change in the leise tenm, o chirus in the Teuse paymenis
(e.g.. changes o fulure paymerts resulting from a changs inan index or rele ased to determine such lease payrnents) or a chunge
1n b e assessrent ol an option o purchase the underlving asszt

Shori-fzrm feasos aurd teases of low-vadie assors

The Croup applies the shos-term lzase cecogritom exemplion it short-lerm leases of mechiney and squipment (Le., those
leases Caal have a lease term o 12 months o wess from the commencerment dale and de 20t contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition oxemption o lzases of offics equipraenl (hat are comsicersd i ke low value.
Lewse payments on saii-term leases and leases of nw-velue arsets are recoenized as expenss ol a staight-line bas’s over the
lease erm.

‘The dewrmination of wwhothor an arraagement 1s (or vonlains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement &t the
inception of the Tease, The arrangement is, or contairs, a lease il lGlilmen: ol the arrargement is Zeperndent on the use of a
specific asset (or assetz} end the armnpoment conveys a wight 1o use the assct {or assets), aver i thal zssel 15 {or thise assels are)
na explicitly specified inan sreangement,

Borrowing costs
Lorrewirg costs direetly arrilnazhle to the acquisizion, constractior or production of an assel tha: necessarily takes 4 substantial

pariod of time o pet ready for

eades use o1 sale are capitalined s gurt ol ke cost ol the asset. All other borrowing costs
are expensed it the peried in which they cecur. Borrowing cosis consist of inlerest sod olaer Losts that an cality inours in
connestion with the borrowiaz of Tunds.

Empairmeni of ovo-linaoeial assels

The Group assesses. &b sxch reporting date, whether thueze s an indication thal an asset may be impaired. 17 any indicalion exists,
or when annual im pairment testng For an gsses s requined, the Group estimates the asser’s reeoveruble smount. An assel's
recoverahle amount is the higher of an assey’s or CGTYs fair value ‘ess costs of disnosal and its value in ase. The recoverable
dmount Is Czlermined for am indivicea. assel, unless the assef does nol generate cash mlluws that are largely mdepeadent of
Lt fromm acher wssews e groups af assels, When the carying amount of an asset o7 CGOT execeds s recoverable amoant, the
assel s considered impaired and is written dossn 1o jts recoverahle amouint,

In aysessing value in use, the estimated faturs zash flows are discounted o thelr aresertt valug usiziy & pre-tax d’scount rate that
reflects current marke: sments of the toe value of money and the risks specilic W the wssct, In deternining fair value less
sty of disposal. recsnt markel transactions are laken inde accouni, I ao such transactions cin be (dentificd, cn aporopriale
wes Tor pubdicly traded

velualien model s used. These caleclations are corrohoraed by valuation mu'tiples, cuoted share i

compaties or other avatlebie Gur value indicasors.

Intpainment Josses of continuing, eneratinns are recognised in the consalidated staten ent of inceme and aihier cumprekensive
income it eXpenss catrgorics consistent with the function of the impaired asset
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National Peirochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stack Company) and its
subsidiarics

MOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinned)

At 31 December 2019

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (continued )

Impairment of non-financial assets {(continued)

Yov assets, an zssessrent is made at each reporting dute o determine whetker there 15 wn indication thel proviously recognised
‘mpairnent lasses no langer exist or kave decreased. [f siech indicaticn exists, the Group cstimates the assct’'s or CGU’'s
recoverchle amount. A previowsly recognissd impalirnent 153 18 reversed anly 1f there has boen a chaape in the assumptiors
avad i determiee (he asset™s Teciveraole amoun: sizee e fast iopairmend loss was recognised. The reversal is linited so that
“he carmying emount of he assel dozs nid execcd 13 recoverabie amaunt, nor sxoeod e carryng amount thal would hase haen
deiermined, net of depreciation. had no fxpairment 1oss been recoznised tor she asser i1 prior years. Such revearsal is recognised
in t1e corsolidaled statement of mcoce and olaer comprehensive nooine unlsss the assel is carrisd at o revaed amourt, in
whick case, “he reversal 15 wedated as a revaluation increass.,

Financial instruments — imilial recogmition, subsequent measurement and Jerecognition

A fimancial instrement i3 any centract that gives vse to a finencial asset of one eovity and g fineneial Hability or cquity
tnstrumment ol anwther enlity.

Financial assets

Toitial recogaition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised ilialiy st fair valae plos, o the cose of Araocial assets nol recurded at fudr value ticough profit
or “nss, transaction cnsts thas are attributable 1o the zequisiztion of the finsncial asset

SubSegrent moasirennent

Ficancial asscls are subsequently ieasured at fair value through profit or logs (FVPLL amordised cost, or fair value through
other coraprehensive income (IVOCE. The vlass?
the assezs; and whether the insruments’ cortractual cash flows reprosent *solely payments of principal und milcrest’ on lac
prompud sl onttanding (the “SPPLerizerion’ ),

)

Acation s based on twir eriteriaz che Group's Tusiness maodel for managing,

Finurcinl assets wl amortised cost
This cawgory 1s he most relevant 1o he Groun, The Group neasures finara'al asset at amortised cost that are held within a
tusiness model with the objecive w hold the fnuncial assets in order w collzet contraciual cash fows thet meet tae SPPT
crilerion. Lhis calegory includes the Groap®s trads end odaer receivables, and Toans ingluded urder odher ron-curren: [inancial
isseds.
Derecognition
A Tinencial ssse (on whore upplivable, o part of a finaccial asset or part of @ grouy of similar Cpancial assels) is pricarily
dereeogmised (e, removed rom the Group’s consolidated stateme, ol finangial posilion} whoen:
a The 17ghis b receive cesh Tows Toonn Lie sssel have explrad; or
a The (Frisup has tansforres Ts rights worecelve cash flows rewn the sxset or Les wssained an ebligation to pay the received

citsh tlows i full without nuterial delay o g ihind parly under 2 ‘pass-through’ arranzement; and e3ther:

{a) the Group has trarslered substantally all the risks and rewards o Che sssel, o

ibj the Croup has neither tzans ferred nor relained substant’ally w2l e risks and rewards of he usset, bul has transterres

control of the asset.
Wher the Grouz has transferrad its rights to receive cash Hows trom an assst or has entered into a pass-through wrangement, it
eval ity 18, uodd wowhst extent, it has retainee the risks and zawards of ownership, When it has neither translerred nor retained
sazstantially &l of ihe risks and rewards of the wsse;, nor wansfereed control of the asset, te Group vontinues W reeognise te
‘ransterred asset to the extant of its cantinuing invoivement. Ta that casc, the Group aiso recopniscs an associatcd Hanility, Tae
transler-od assel acd the associated ability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and oblipations that the Group has
retained. Continuing involvement Lhat takes the form of a guarantze over the transloreed asset is measured o the lower of the
or'ging’ carrving amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group coud e reyuared o repay.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
At 31 December 2019

4 SUYIMARY OF SIGNIFICART ACCOQUNTING POLICTES {continuedl)

Financial instruments  iniddal racognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Imprisirment of finaucial assety
IFRS 9 requirce the Group o recond an aclowance fur expected eradit lesses O'ECL™) Zor all loans and other debt financial
ugsels not held at FWPLL,

FECT 5 e bizsed on the difference berween the contraciual cash llews duc in accordance with the contract and all the cash lows
thal the Group expects o reeeive. The shortfall is <hen discounted at an approximation 1o the asset’s original clfective inwerest
ratz,

Fuor trade and ather receivables, 12w Group “is cpplicd the stendard®s simplifed epproach and has calzulated LCL bused om
lifetime expected credit losses. The Group has esiazlisked o provision metrix that is hased on the Group™s kisiosical credis loss
experienes, adiusted tor forward-lao<'rg tactors specific o e deblors sne the ecomem’s enviraro,

For other debl Minancial essets (Te., employee loans), the ECL s bused on the 12-month O, The 12-manth BCL is the pottion
el lifetiroe ECL that resulis fromn defanlt evers or g financizl instrament that are possible within 12 menths aftor the reporting
date, Huwever, when there has beer a sipnitioant inercase in credit risk since originaion, the allowacce will be bused on the
Ifetime ECL.

The Group considers 2 financial asset it delindt wher contractuzl payment arz 00 deys past due. However, o eortuin cases, the
Group may also conzider a financial asset to be in defxall when irtemal or extornal “rtormation ind'cates that the Growp is
urlikely to recuive the outstanding contractual ameunts i Al belore luking inte cecount any cradil entancemans held by fo
Ciroup.

Finaneial liahilitics

Iuitiof recownition amd measurenint

Tinancial tiahilities are classified, at cidal recogoition, as fnancial Habiilies al fir veloe ihrough protic or loss, loans and
burrowings, payadle apnropriate. All financial labilites are recogrizcd infally af fair va'ue and, in the case of leans and
borrowings ard payeblos, et of dircetly astributabl2 transact’ on costs,

The Group's [ouncia] daoilities inclade trade and other payables, loans and homrowing and non comiralling, parne-'s
subordinated dean.
Subsequent measarement
The financial labilitics are subsequently meazured at amortized coss,
Derecopniion
A fipuncial Fabllity is derscognizzd when the obligation under (e Gability is discharecd or cancelled or expirss. Wher an
existing Gnancial labil'ty is replaced by acother rom the samu lender om substantially different torms, or (e tenrs of an
extsting lighiity are substantially moditied, such an exchange or modificatior is treated as the derceosnition ot the orginul
Ciabilivy end the recognilon of @ new liability, Lhe diffcrence in the respective carrying amounis s recogniced in (e
cunselidatsd staterent alfineere and cther compeshensive invomu,
(Hisering of financiafl insgrimen ks
Firanciol wsscts and firanciai liahilities arc oftset and 1hs net amount s reported ir the consolidated swoement of inuneiul
nosition if there s a currently enforeeadle legul vight 10 alfeet the reevgnized amounts and there s an intention o seitle on & not
813, to realize e c3sels and setile the Jabilities simulageously.
Tuventarics
inventories are valued a7 the lower of cost and net realisable value Costs Incazred in bringing each prouct 1o ils prasent
location and condilion are aucounted G, as o lows:

» Raw rmazerialy and spares: purchoss cost on a weiglled dversge basia,

 Finished gonds and wirrk in progress: cost o' diree: materials and fabour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads

bascc on the normal operating capacity. but excluding berrowing coss.

Wet realisable value is the cstimamed selling price in the ordinary course ef business, less estimated costs of completion and the
wslizrealed costs necossary o make the sale,




National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS fcontinued)

At 31 December 2019

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories (cuntinued)

Copstmtidie spore parts

Corsumables are anciflery malcrials which av2 corsurmecd in the praducion of semi-“nished and Gnished peoducs.
Corsumables may include enginesring materials, ane-lime packoging miserials and vertain catalysts.

Spre puris are the interchargeable pars of plant ard eguipment which are cons'dered (o be essentlal © support routing

mdinkenance, rapa’r and overhaul of plant and cquipment or t be csed in emargency sitiions for repairs. “he Croun mairtains
th:e follawing dilZerent types of spere parts;

= Strwd-by equipment fisms acquired ogether with e plantéprodastion line or purckased subscguenty but rzlated tooa
particular plart or procierion line and Wil rarely be requires wre orizical plart operatior. and mnast be avallable af stansd-
by al all times. These are capitaliced as part of properiy, plant and equipment and depreciated [rom the purchase date
ovar a periad which s shorter ol the comperant’s uselul life e the rermaining usciul life of the plant in which it is to be
uttliced. These do not farm past of Tnventory, pravided tral capiialization criteria cnder nroperty, plac and eglipren is
LI

Repairuble items thut wre plantproduction line specilic with long lead times and will be replaced and returbished
Treguendly {mostly durlog urmaroceds). These are capitalived as pert ol property, plant and eqaipment whers the
cepilivation criteria arc men. Lepreciation s siated from day of installaion of thaso items in the plant. aaé the
Cepreciation period s the sherer of the pseful Jdfe of the component and (ke remaining usetul 10t of the plant and
suipment in which itis fnstallud. These do no form pars of inventory,

Leneral cepital spares and ather consumable items. are cot plant specific and cun be used 2t any time for faciilating
plent anerations. Uhey are pouerally classified g3 “corsumabic spare paris’ undsr inventory, unless they cxeeed the
tareskald for cupitalization acd have o useful lite of more Lan oee year, wder whick case they are recorded under
properly, plant and eqaipment {and depreeinted similar 10 repairable items?, Spares and consamadle urder inventories
are sub’ 2¢t Lo assessment tor ahsalescence provision aad are charged to the consolidated statement uf inveme and other
comprehensive income vpon cheir mstlaton or wse. Ty provision s based on a syslemaiis consisten, muanner
depeading On meETdEemeTy’s estinates, as well as apeing, neloul phaysical wear and tear, cte. Whare seen iters meel the

criteria [or gapitalizdun, thelr copreniation metkod i similas 1o sepairahle ftems, as nosed whove,

Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cesh equivalznls i the corsolidawd sutement u! Anancial postion eomprise ash a1 banks und on hand and sho-
terin dupusils wilk & matur ity of ibres nonths or css, which arz subject 0 an insimifizent risk cf changes 'n vahre.

Short term invesirnents. bank eleposits
Short term investmients bank deposits in the sonselidated statement of (nancial position compris: cash at shorteerm deposits
with originzl meurities of more than thrze months bul 1 more tan one year from the dase of ac gaisition, whicl arv subjocl
an insigmilicunt visk of changes in valus,

Statutory reserve

iacoordunce with the Sandi Arabian Regulatiors for Comperies, the Growp must set sside 10% of its oo income for the wear
vril it has buill up 2 reserve coual Lo 3% of the share capi

- The Group may reselve o discontnue suck trars=ers whan the
able for distrZbulione.

reservy tolns 3% ol the shere capial., The rosemve is rot avii
Farnings per share
B3asic earcings per share is calvulued by dividing:
# The net income aliributable w sharchalders ot the Cempany, eeaiuding any costs of servicing eyuity other than ordinary
sharus,

« By I weighed avirage numher of ovdinary skares oulszending during te finuncial period, adjusted for honus elements
in ordinary sharcs issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.
Fuir value of nun-controlling partner's subordinated loan
The fa'r valve ol noc-controfling pariner's subordicated loan is coterrvined baged on the valuation teehnigues inciuding Lhe
discounted cash Zow (DCI) medel, "The inputs to ©1ese models are taken from vbservan le maekes wheee possinle, but waene
this is no7 feasibie. o cogree of 'udgment is re cuired in estullishing lair valuss, Judgmuats include considerations of inpuis such
as diseor rate, liquidity risk. eredit risk and velatTity,




National Petrochernical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
AL5] Decamber 2019

) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES (continued)

Zakat and income fax

Zakat is pravided in accorcance with the Regulutions of the General Authority o Zakat zed Tax (GAZTY in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabin, Undur ke revised zakal saaderd issued by the Saudi Organ‘zation of Certificd Public Accountants (SCPA)Y,
zakal provision 15 charged to <he conselidated statzment of incora and other comprehensive incowme, as 1A% 12 Tncome Luxes'
do nat arovide auy guidance on the accounting treatment ol zakat. The Non-controlling inlerests in the Gironp is subjec: 1o
income tax ntbe Kingdom of Saudi Arvahia

Current incemme wx asscts and liabiUities ror cusrent and prior periods #re measuzed ot the amount expeciad W be recovered lrom
or paid to the @xaton authorizizs, The tax rues asd s lews used © compute the wnount are thase thar arg cnacted o
substantivel y snacted at the reporing date. Current income Lax is recognized in the consolidated stalement of income wmrl otker
comprehensive iheome. Management periadically cvaluates positiors teken in the Group®s lwe retumns with respeet 7o sttaations
in which aprlicatle rax regulations are subject io inferpretation und eswanlishes provisiens where appropriate.

Deferred Income tuk

Dieferred income tax 18 prosided vsing the lanility method on temporary differonces betweon the tux bases of assess and
labilidics and their carrying amourts for fnaceial reporting purpcses at the reporting cate. Deferred income tax labilites aze
recagnized for all taxable winporary diZlerences. Deferred income tax asels are recognized on all deductible lemporans
difference, carry forward of uaused tax credits and unused tax 1osses only (o the extent (hat it is probuble tha: taxable protic will
be evailunic ageinst which these assers can be wilived,

“The carrving amoum of deterred income tax assats/labilities is reviewerd al voch reporting dare znd reduced 1o the extent that 2
s no longet probabie that sufficiem waxabl: ;ratil will be avadlable 1o allow all or purt of the deferved incor ¢ tax asset/liab ity
o ne utilized. Tnrezognived deforred income lax wssets/iubilities are re-assessed at each repesting date and are recugnived 1o
the cxtent that i hus beecome probable that future tasable profis will allow te dufirnsd lax assello be recovered,

Dietierred income tax assets and Fabilities are measured & the tex rates that are eapeeted W appiy in the year when the esset s
redlized o2 the lizhility is settled. based cu tax males (end tax laws) that have heen enscted or substatively cnaeted at the
repering date,

Dcfcrred income rax relaling o ftems recopnizel outside profit or Joss is recoghized o.aside prolit or less. Deterred income ax
Items are recopnizad in cortelation W the under.ying transaction <faer in other comaechensive income or dirsetly in eduity.

Delerred inzome tax aasets und deferred incaire tax ligbilitics we oTsel. i a legally endorccuadle riga exists to set ot currens tax
asscty against eurrent tax Habilities and the de ferred tuxes relate (o the same axable emin and the same msation anthasics,
Rithholding iux

The Company wilhholds taxss on cotain transections with nor-resident paries in the Kingdam of Saudi Atabia, inclading
dividengd saymens o the non-Sawdi pareern & royaired under Saudi Arablan [ncome o [awy

Vulae adided tax

Fxpenses and asses are recognised avt of te amocrt of vaiee added wax, excens:

o When the value added Lax Inearred on a purchase of ass818 o7 seevives (s not tecoverable Tom the GAZT, in which case,
the vehic added tax is recogznised as part of the vost of acquisition of the asses or as part of the experse jtem, as
applicable,

o When receivallen and payables are stated with the amount of vatuc added tax “neluded. The net amount of valve accsd
tax recoverable from, or peyuble o, the GAZT is included e part of receivat=ley or puyshles i the consalidated
slatement of financial position, .

Provisions

Prowisions are recognized when the Group has a presant ohligation {Jlegal or constructive) us a result of a past cvent, 't is
prohenie that an outfow of resources embocying econemic buretits wil. be reguired to seitle the oblination and a reliabe
estintate can be made of the amount ol the vhligatior . Whee the Group expuets smme or 2'1 et a provision to be reimbursed, for
sawrple under wn insurance contract, the reimbursemert is recegntzed as a separzle asset but only when the reimbarscment is
vitlaaly coezlain. The expense relatiep o oa provigion is presented o the conse idated staterment of meome and other
comprehensive neome net of any reimbursement. 1F ke elieet of the time velue of money is marerial, provisions are discountzd
using a surnt pre-taes Tate hat reflects, when appropriate, she «isks specitic w the lighility, When Jisvounting is used, th
inerease i the provision due to the passage of tinwe is recognized as a luunee cosl
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

MOTES TO THE CONSOTIDATISD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
L 31 December 204 G
4 SLM¥ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {coatinued)

Confingencies
Comtimren: labilities are nol recognized n the consoliduted fine

zlal stasements. Lhey are disclosed unless che possilility of an
oullow of resources enbodyirg economic benefits 1s remote. Liabiliies whick ers prahable are recorded in the firuncial
statement under accounts payube and uceruals. A contingent ass

s not recogniasd inthe conselidated Mmancial statements bat
digeloszd when s indlow of economic benedits is probahle,

Friployvees™ benefits

The Uroup sperates 2 noa-inded empupee wrd-ofservies beneflt plun. which is classified as defined benelil obligation under
IAS 19 Tmp.oyee Benefs” A defined benefit plur. 7 2 plan which is not & deficed comriz.cion plar. The ability recounized in
the consolidated stawment of financial posit'on lor & deficed beneti plan is the present valage of the defined benzfit obligation al
the vnd of the Teporting pering, T e dafined honefit obligation is calewnied by independent zctuaries using the projected andi
credit method. The present value of e defined benclit obligation is determiined by discounting estmawed future cesh owflows
using marxel vields at the und ol'the reportirg period of high quatity corperats bonds (that have erms te matur ity approximeling
to the estimaled lerm of the past <mployment Ser st obligations. Actuarial pams and lesses arising [fom changes in swtaarial
assamplions cnd experience adjustments wwe recomiacd in equity through the consaligared sratement of inceme and other
comprelisnsive income in the peried 10 which they arise,

Revenue form confracis with customers
fale of praducts s vac only sourse of sgveaue, Sules of prducis in tha corselidaied statement of income and otier
comprehensive inezing are recognized whoen the Group has an obligation o sell the goods, (L is uble o estallish thet u eontract
exists, Lhe cons'deratian is relutively measurable, end collection is protable. The amounts recognized as sales of rodu

]
represent the fiir values ol the considerations received or receivahle trom rslaizd pariies aed thizd parties on the sales of such
prodacts. " ke Ureup’s contracts with custamers for the sale of its products generally includes ors performance obligation, The
Group recopmizes revente forn products sa.es o the peint in time wlen contrl af g1ch sroduels s rans ferred to the customer,
gengraly on delivery,

Finance income

For all lnancial instrurments measured & &mortecd cost, intzrest irgome is recorded using the effective interest fele (ELK). 'The
TR s the rate that exacily discounts the estimaed fuure cash recoipts over the expected ifs ol the linancial instrument or o
sharter period, where appreasiate, w the net carrving amocrt of the fnuncial wssel Interes: income is incladed in other ‘neomne
in consoliduled statement af incorie and other comr prehensive income.

Fxpenses

All expenses are recognized on an aceruzl basis, Operating costs are recopnized on a hisiorical cost hasis. Praduation coss and
dircet expenses ara classified as cost of sales. All otier expenses, including seling and distrizution expenses nol deducied Trom
sdles are clussilled as aelling, peraral und admicistraive sxpenses. Allocation etwser cost of sales, selfing and distribution and
zenaral and administrative cxpeases, wherr requiced. s made an 2 corsistent basis.

For<itn currencies

Thz Crovp®s comsolidated frangish staements are presented n Saudi Riyal, wiiel 15 a'so the Company™s lunctional currency,
For cacl entity. 1t Grocp deterntives the furctional currency und items included in ke fnancial staemers of cach entity are
mezsured asing thal functional curecacy. The Granp nses the direct method of consolicaion and o1 diszosal ol a foreign
aperation, the gain or loss that is recassificd o consolidated staiement oi'income and uther comprehensive Tneome reflests the
umeunt that arises from using this metlod.

Transuction and balaoces

“rangactons in forsigr curreraics are inilially recardud by the Gireup's entities al thelr respeetive lunctionel currency spot rates

at the dzc the transection izt gualifics for recognition. Manetary assels =rd labilities denamingicd i torcign currencies are
wanslaped wi the lunctional currency sput Tates of oxchange at the reporting dute, All ciffercacss arising, o settlement or
wranslation of moerzlary frems are tfaken o the consolidated statement of income and other comprihesive income with the
unzeption of differences on forelpa wwnelary ilems that o nart of 8 rer investrant in a forcign vpcration. Lkuse are
recugnised In OCT until the dispusal ol the et {avestment, at which time they wre reciassilied o consolidated staterment of
weome and oter cemprehensive income, Non-monetars s thut sre measared in taoms o7 historical cogtir a forelgn currercy
wre transiated using the exchangs rete as 2l the dale of 1he inidal transaction and are ol subseqaently restateil. Non-monctany
ems measured o feir value in & foreign curreney arc trenslated wsing the exchtarge rules gl the dae when the [ais valle s
delermined. The gain or loss arising on tanslation of non-monetary fwms messured at fwr value 7s eated in line with the
recognition af a gain or loss on change i fair value of the itam,
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued }
At 31 December 2019

5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

‘T'he Groun annlied, for the firstiime, IFRS 16 "Leases™. Ax reciired by 1AS 8, the mature andf elicel ol hese changes, 1Fany, are
disclnsed halow.

Soveral other amendments and interpretatiors anply For the fizat time in 20049, but do not hese 2r impaet on the consoliduted
{inancial statements of the Geouvp. The Croup has nol early adopted éry olker slandard, interpretation o amendment that has
ber lysued hul is no yet effective.

TFRS [6 Leases

[FRS 165 supersadas TAS 17 Leases. [FRIC 4 Deternining whethor an Arrangerent eanta'ns a Teaze, S1C-15 Operating [ eases-
Locentives and S1C-27 Bvaluaing e Substancs of Trensactions [nvolving the Legal Fonn of @ Lease. The siandard sats cut the
princivies fier the recopriion, measurement. presenietion and disclosurs of leases end requires lessees to sccount for must leases
under a singls on-balance sheet model, Lessor accounting under TFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from 1AS 17, Lessors will
cionlinue [ classily Teases as cither cparating or finance leases using similar principles as in LAS V701 herelore, IFRS 16 did nol
have ar impact for leases where the Group is the lessor,

The Group applicd odificd retrospective approach, which requires the recognition of ke comulative effect ofinildaily applying
IFRS L6 at, | January 2019, 1o the revained eamings and net restate prior vears. Hince the Group recognized the right-of-use
asscts af the wnoent eoeal o the lease liahbilites (exclading prepavirent and acseruals), there was no impact to e relained

carnires. The Group elecled to wse the tracsition practica’ expedient alluwing the standard o be apzlied enly o contracts that
ware previoushe identitied as leases, applying AR 17 and 13 R1C 4 at the date of initiul applicazion. 'The Group also eleeted 1o

use the vecognizian cxemptions tor fease contracts thal, at the commencement dae. have a lease term of 12 months of Less and
do not cantain o purchase option {short-werm leases™), and lause conlracts [or which the underlying asset (s of low valse [low-
vala sssels s,

AL Jaauazy 2019, the Group reeognizad SR80 million of right-o5use assets and leese lisbilides of SR 77 million (exclualing
prepaxraens af SRO12 million), “he Croup's consolicated staemeT: of income and ather comprehensive neeme for the yoar
gnded 31 Decernbes 2018 swas impacied by depreciation of reht of use of assets of SR 2003 million and inlerest expenses of SR
2 million, The Grean's consclidated statement of cash flows Tor wear ended 31 December 2019 was impacted by a shift from the
cash generazed trom operations ot SR 14.6 million to the ret cash usez in Snancing activiiics,

Nature of the effcet of adoption of [FRS 16

Ihe Croup 7as lease contracts for various ‘lems of Lol warchouses and cyuipment. Before tae adoption of IFRS 16, the Geoup
clazs’fied each of i*s leases (as essee) al the inception date < eilher & fimance lcase or ar cpcraling lease. A casc was classitied
a5 o fnanee lewse 110 transferred substarniclly all of the risks and rewands incidersal to owngrship of the Teased asset ta the
Ciroup; rrherwise iU was clussilicd gy an operating easc, Fiaeroe uses s capilalised al e cormencemnent of the lzase at the
Inceplion dute the fair value 07 he lewsed property or, U lower, at the present value of the minimam icase paymenis,
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT'S {conlinued)
AL3] December 2019

5 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND TNTERPRETA TIONS {continued)
TFRS 16 Leaves feontintiod)

MNatuore of 1he effece of adeption of IFRS 16 (continued}

lcase puyracnts wuere apportioned achween interest {recognised as finance cosis) and reduction of the lease lizhilty. Tn an
operating lease, the leased propery was nol canitalisec and the lease payments were rceognised as rent expense ia profit or luss
on a straizht-Tins basis over the lease term. Any prepaid cent and accrued rent were recugiised under prepuvmeznts and trade and
other payables, respectively, Upon wloption af [FRS 16, the Group applicé a single recognifion and meas rement aprroach for
all Leases, excepd for shori-leres leases and leases of low-value assers. The standard provides specific ransiton requiremerts and
praciieal cxpedienrs, which has 2oen applics by the Crroup. 13y class of underlving 2ssel, 10D 10 SCPArAle 1 - Cast Campmnents
From lease components, aud onslead aueount for cach lcese comnoment and any assoclaled nonsfease components as 2 sinple
leass component.

Leases praviousty geconnivd for ax operating leases
4 A z

“The Grouap recogrised righl-ol use assels and lease Hakilities tor those 12ases provi

usly classified us operating leases, except
tor short-terv Teases and leases of lowevalus assets, The right-of-use assels were recogpised hased on the amoent equal to the
leass Labifities, sQuslel for any reloted prepaid and acerced lease peyments previcusly recomises. Lease lisbilities wors
recognised based on the present value of 1he Temaining lease payments, discounted using the ineremental sorrowing rate a7 the
datc of inita” application.
The Growp alsu asplicd the aviilable practical expedicnls whereir it
o Used asingle discoun: rate to a portfouo of Jeases with reasenably similar okaraelerstics,
= Relivd on its ewscssment of whether leases arc onerous immediatel befers the date o initia: application,
= Applicd t1e shoeri-term Jeases eremphions to leages with kase ierm that ends within 12 mevhs anthe date of inirial

applizacion

= Uy ¢lags o underlving ussel, not to separate non-lease campangnts from lease compenents, and instead aceount for cach toise
canponent and any asseciated run-leese componerls as a sitgle leuse compuenent.

« Exeded the wnikac direet costs frox the mezsuremant of the gheo-uss assel al the date of inital application.

* Used hindsizghi 2 determining the lease terry where the contrect contains options W exiend or wermingte he lease.
Sumniary of new accounting policies
figfi-oftuse assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets al the commencement date of the lease {i.2., tae date the underlving asse: is availzble
Zor use). Righ-oftuse assets are measured al cost, less any accumulated depraciation and wnpeiment losses, and adjusied for
any remeastzment of lease Tabitites, Ty cost of rghi-of-use assers includes the amount of lease Pabilides recomised. initia.
direet costs incuered, and Lease payiments made at ot before the eommancemant date lass aty lease Incentives received. Unless
The Gironn 15 reasenably cortain to abtain ownersaip ol te leased asset ar the end o the loegsy Lo, e recognised right-oftuse
assels ure depreciated an i siraight line basis aver the shorer of its estimated aseful fife and tae keuse torm. Right-of-use asscls
are stlyject to impairmen:,

Leose Cahilives

A7 the commencement date of the lease, the Group recogrises lease liabilities meas.azed al Cie present value of Fease payrtents o
be made over the igese term, The lease paymens include Sixed pavments (including in=substance Lxed paymoents) Jess any Jease
tpeertives raeeivable, variablie lease payments that depend onan tadex or a vate, and amgunts expeeed 10 be paid under residual
velue guarantees. The Zsase payments also include the exercise price of a purchase opilen sedscuably cortuin o bu exeraised by
the Croup and pavments of penalties [or lermicating a lease, i the Tease te-m reflects the Group exereising the option o
wemingie. The varieble lease payments char Co not depend on an index or o ratc are recognised as expense in tage peried on
waieh the event er condibon that triggers the pavment vecurs.

In caleulating the prosent vulue of “case payments, e Groap uses the incremental borrowing rate at the l2ase commencerent
dutes 11 he interest rate lmplicit in the leuse is not readily determinabic. Afte- the commencement date. ihe amopunt of lesse
iabilitizs 1s inereasad to reflect the aceredon ol interest end reduced for the lease paywents made. e addiion, the carying
arunt af lease Lnbilities is rameasured  ifthere 's & modifieation, a change in the lepse e o change 1 the in-sebstunee Sxed
lease payments or & change i 1 assessmeni 10 pureass the underlying asses.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and ity
subsidiarics

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMLNTS (contimied)

Al 31 December 2019

§  NLW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERIPRETA TEONS (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (comtinuzd)

Summary of uew accounting policies (cuntinued)

Sharetenn leases and feaseys of low-vaiie asvete

The Group applies the shorl-tern lease recognition exemption to its short-tarm “cases of equipmettt (i.u., those leases that have a
lease term o 12 monihs or less treee “he eommencement dete and do not coniain a puzchuase oplion), It alsu wpplies the lease of
low-value assets recognition exerplion (Rat are comsidered el Loy value iz, below SE 1 B, 7300} 1rase paymerts on shen-tennm
leases and leases of low-vilue assots e recognised as vapense on g straight-ling hagis aver the |21358 term.

The kuase payments are dscountead using the inerementi] borrewing rate, belng (ke rute that the lessee would have to pay 1o
borrow the fimds rocessary 1o obtain @ asses of simifur vabuc in a similar economic envirenment with simlar terms anc
aonditions.

SManilicant fudgmer v determining the lease terim of comtracts with renewal aptions

The Group has severs] lease vomtracts that include extersion and termination aprions. These options are  nogetizted b
managamend e pravide Flexthility in managing the lonsed-asset portfolio and allgr with the CGroup's business needs.
Manugement exvreises sipnificart judgment In determining whuther these exlension erd termination options ave reasonably
certain o be exercised [see note 37,

Amounts recoguised in the consolidated statement of financial position aud consalidated statement of ineome and ather
tom prehensive inennte

Right-of use wssets

Frpupmic .
CMfiees cnd
motor FLoise
Lol Warehausas vehicfes Toral fubifities
NE T SE 00 SR SR 660 RY /]
Amounis reeoiniscd o the consolidated
sluleren: of  [nencial pesition when
applying RS 16 at 1 January 2019 31663 53,190 3183 89,036 LT
Addiions - - 623 623 S10
Tiepreciatior expense 01,972) (17,170} {12372 (20,379 -
Inlerest charged - - - 2,071
Favments - _ - {14.585)
AL 3 December 2119 E1TR ] 36,020 1,569 69,280 63014

The Griup bas sed weighed average incromental berrowing rate of 3.85% fur calculating ‘he present valde af the lease
tiahilitics.

LFRIC dnterpretation 23 Uncertadnn: aver fncome Tax Treatment

Tre Interpreiaiion uddresses the asceunting for fmcome taves when ax trealments nvolve wasertaings that aftects e
application af [AS 12 Incame laxes. [t does not apply 1o 1axes or Levies ouiside the seope of TAS 12, nor does 1t snectfically
include requirceents relaling w nterest and ponallics associated with Jncetain tax veaments, THe Interpretation. specifically
addresses the following:

* Whether an colily considers uncertain tax treatmerts separately

« The asswnptions un cnbiLy mskes about he excmiration of 1ax ereatmerts by taxation a.horitcs

* Hlow an ertiry determines texable profit Gux Joss), s bases, unusced tax losses, unuscd fax eredits and wex rates

= How an ertiy considers changes in tacrs and circamstances

ke Croup determings whetier Lo censider cacl uncerain Lix teatmert separate.y or “ogesher with one or more other uncergin
nax lreatmertts and nses thee approach that better predicts the resolution o7 the uncert anly,
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem} (A Saudi Joint Stock Company} and its
subsidiarics

.NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS feontinued)
At 31 Tlecember 2019

5 NEW AND ANMENDED STANDARDS AND INFERPRETATIONS (continued)
Amendments 1o IFRS 9; Prepayrent Features with Negative Compenrsation

Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can he mcasured at amortised cost or 2t fair value tacouph other comprehicnsive inceme,
mrovided that the comeacluad cash flows are “solcly payments of princi paf and inlerest on the principul amount owstanding” (the
SPPIeriteeion) and the instrament is held within (o eppropriate businzss model for (kas classitication. The smendrments o IFRY
9 clarily that a linuncial wsset pesscs the SPPT erirerion segard.ess ol an event ov circumsnmce that aauges the cary temmmation
of the contract and irrespective of which paity pays o receives mezsonahle compansation for ihe carly temination ol the
contract, These amendients Ead noe impact on the corsolidate? financial statements uf the Gronp,

Adremdments 5o £AS 19: Pimn Amendmens, Curtailment or Setilement

The amendments W LAY 14 address the accounting when a plan amendmerdt, curtuilment oF settlement occurs dorin gareporting
perfod. The amendments specify thar when a plan amendiment, cartailment or setlement nocors duting the annual repmting
periad, an omity is required e determine e cwment servics cost for the remainder of the pericd alier the plan amendment,
curtaileient or seitlemue, using fe actuarial assumysions used w0 remeasure the nel defined banefit ltability {usset) rerlecting the
benefits oflered under the plutand the plan assets afler that vvent, An entity is also rucuired e detenmine the net interest for the
cemainder ¢f the petiod after ke plan amendment, curleilment or seit oreent using the res delined benefi liahility (assel)

retlecting the benefits ulfered under the plac and (7e plan assets afler that avent, aud the discount rate wed Lo remessure that net
defined benelle Hunllity (ussut) The amendmems kad no impacl o6 the comsalidatce finencial satements of the tiroup us 1t did
not have sey plan amendments, curtailments, ur seillements during the wear.

Amentments to 15 28: Lony-term interests in associares and joirdt ventures

The amendments clarify thel an entity applics 17RS 9 1o long-temm interesis in an assaziuee or Juinn venturs b which the equity
method is nol applied but that, in substance, (one part of the net nvesiment in the associzle or joint venture {long-term
irterests), This clarification is relevant bocasse it implies that the expected sredit loss modcl in ITTRS € applies o such Iong-term
irlerests,

The antenduents elso clzrified thal, in apply're IFRS &, e eotity does nod ake Tino aceount of any lossas of she associate or
Juintventure, or any impairmen losses on the oot nveatment, recopnised as s ustments (o the nel jnvestouent in the associate or
Jolnt venture that zrise from applying 1AS 28 Invesiments in Associzies and Joint Ventures, These amendments Fad no impact
oo the conge iduled financial slatements us the Group dows et ave lone-term interesss in it sssociate or jRirt venturz.

Arnernat Improvemenis 00 £5-2017 Cyele

LFRS 3 Bosiness Combinations

The umendments clarity f-ar. when an entity obtiing contro” at a by giness that is a joinT oneratia:, it applics the requirements for
a ausiess combinwinn achicwed in stages, including remeasuring previously held interests r the assels and liabilitics of the
Joint apesaian a fair value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasuzes its entire rreviously kold interest in the joint operation. As
entily applies those amendments 1o business e hinalions Zor which the acquisitic s dawe 1s on or alter the beginning o the first
annuad repotting period beginiing vn or after | Tanuay 2019, with cerly spplication permitted. These amendments Aad no
impact £ the finarclal siadements of the Campany, as therz s no transactien where joini sontro! is o'nained.

[FRS 11 Joirt Avranpements

AT entiry That partizipates in, Jut docs not Fave joint vonrel of) u ioint opercion might obtain joint contral of the join: aperution
in whizh the activity of the joint eperation vonstitutes @ business as defined in T°RS 3. The wmendmeniy clariry Fat the
previously held interssts in that jolnl operation arc not renzzsared,

AL endity applics “hosz amendments to mansacticns ir which (- oblains joint cantrol an o ater the baginning uf e Grat zotoal

reparting perivd beginming, on or afler 1 Jaary 2009, with ¢arly application pernitted. Thess amendments had no impact an
the comsolidated finuncizl statcments of (ke Lo, s there is no tansgetion wheee a juint contre’ 15 oained,
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLITYATED FINANCTAL STATEMINTS {continued)
At 31 December 2014

5 NEW ANTI AMENDED STANDARDS AND INUERPRETATIONS {continued)

Annizal Improvenents 2005-260F7 Cyele (contined)

TAS 12 [ncome Taxes

The amuendments elacify that the ‘reome tax comseqaenues of dividends are linked mers directiy o past ransaclions or events
that gerareted distribuieble protits than to distibutons -o ewmees, Thereforeg, an citily recognises the ineome tax cons equances
of dividends in ororit or loss. other comprebensive income or equity ac cording o where it origimally recoznised hose DSl
trangaclions o° events. An entity applivs the amendments for annual TEPOTINg pericds begining on or affer 1 Jeauary 2014,
with ¢arly eppleation permitted. When the entiny Hrst applies those amendments, il applics them to the income Luwx cans CeyuBnC s

ol dividends recegaised on or after the beginning of the carlisst comparelive period. Thess emeadmenis Fad no impact on fhe
consclidated Trandizl statemerts of the Grous.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendirents clasife that an enliy trews as par: of gencrul horrowings any borrowing originally made o develun a
Qualilying assc when substantally a | of the aetivites necessary o prepare that asset [or {is Interdad vse or sale ure com plute.
Thue entity apples te smergments w aorrowing costs neurred on o- afer the beginning 0¥ the annual reporsing pericd in whick
“he exity Lirst applies those amendmen:s, An entiy applies ~hose amendments for annal reporting periods beginning om or sfier
b Tanuany 2019, with carly application permitied. Thase amencmerts had no impaet on the consolidated Fnaneial stemants ol
the Croup.

6 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YT TEFFECTIVE

The nev end amended standards ansl Interpretations that are issu ed, but not yeu effeative, up 1o (e date o ssuance al the
Group’s consalidated financial statements are disclosed Lolow. The Group inteads e adopt these new and umerded standards
and interpretetions. i applicable, when they hecome ol ective.

FERS {7 heiurzmicg Cuntracts

In May 2017, the TASE issucd IFRS 17 Insurance Corracs (IFRS 17}, & comprencrsive new acegunting standard for insurance
contrasts covering recognilion and measuremend. presentation and disclosure, Once aftective, IFIS 17 will replace IFRS 4
Insurance Conzracts (IFRS 4 that was issucd in 2005, IFRS 17 applivs 20 a1 tpes of nsurance contracts (Lo, 1fe. non-life,
dircet insurance ur ¢ re-icsureace), regardless of the type ol entities that lssue them, as well as tr cortain guazantees and finencial
instrama s with discretionary participation feares,

A Few scope excoptions sill spply. The overall abjestive ol IFRS 17 15 10 provide an ateounting model for insurance contracls
hat is more useful and cons n TFRS 4. whick are largely hased on
grandfatavring provious locat cecounting pelces, TFRS |7 provides 4 conprehansive model (o insurines contracts, covering
sl celevant aceonnting aspects. ‘The eorg of 'RS 17 35 F g goncrul madel. sapplemuented by

fent lor insurars, Incontrast to the recuiremen's

* Asnecitic adaptation lor contacts wilh dirset parrticipation features (the variable Jee approachy

* A s'rpliZed appreach (the aremivm lloca:ion upproseh) mainly %o sher-duration comracts

ITRS 17 is vifclive tor renorting periods Beginning aa ar uflee 1 Januacy 2021, with somparulive figures required. arly
applicalion is pemittad, provided the entity also app ivs IFRY @ and IFRS 15 on or bu-ore the dale i+ first applies [FRS 17, Thig
standard is not applicable o the Group.

Amerdytenss 1o 1S T und 143 8- Pefiaitinn of Matericl

Lz Octaber 2018, the TASE issued amendmens e 1A% 1 Prosentazion of Financial S'awments and TAS 8 Aceu Leting Molicies,
Chargzs in Accounting listimates and Errovs to alten the definiion of *muterial® acress the standurds and 1o clarify corain
aspects of the definilion. The aew defin'tion states (bt “nivrmation is mazerial T omilling, misstazing or obscuring it vould
Teasanably be expected to Influence Secisions tht the primary users of gereral purpose firuncial satemerts wake on the basis
of these consolidanad financial staroments, which provide linancizl information akoyt a spevilic repowting ontity. The
amendments i the de'tion of meterial *s not cxpected to hove a significant impact on the Group's eonselidared fnanciul
SLLLCT.CRLS,
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joimt Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AL 31 Dezember 2015

7 PROPERTY, PLANLTAND EQUIPMENT {cautinucd)

74 The office buildings and piant end equipmert are constructed on land leased from the Rowval Commission lor Jubail and
Yanbu The “easc s initially for a qeriod of 30 vears commencing from 29 [hol-Qud: 1428 H (comresponding to 4
December 2007) and is cenewable for farther nerindy thereadter.

72 The Group's planl and cquipment are secured by (1) lizns sgaicst term loan from Saudi Industrizs! Development 'und (note
184} and (ii) assipnmont of residual proceeds against term loans from consortium of commercial banks {note 1X.2) and
Prhlic Tnvestmants Fund [nate 18.3).

A4 A De repanting date, conslructior work in progress represents costs incurred in conngctinn with the plant activities.

74 As per the Group's palicy. ihe nommal turaground cyele occur &t the interval of 72 months and planned Lunaround costs are
delerred and amortized owver the next planaed fyrnaroun L

73 [n 2008 he CGirm reviewed e sstimared wselul e of cerrain non=cutrert assets and changes in whe cstimated tsctul 1ite
Fas boen ellectsd prospeelively, Had s Ganpe pol taken plece, tle profin for the yeour 2018 would Lave boen inereased oy
81 256.5 million,

The weurly
effect of
mure {Jess)
depreciation
claree

S roger

Fortlie yeur 201% 236,537

For each year from 2019 00 10 20054 (15,493

Fuor the wear 2039 (6,177

74 The deprecialion charge has een allovated as follows:

201 2018
Sk tonn" SR oot
Cost of sales (aote 25) 856,792 1,104,585
Crereral and adminisirative capanses (notz 273 325 10 %39
866,117 1113424
8 RICHT OF USE ASSETS
Cifieas eod
Tand  Worehiousas Fritiipment  motor veliofes i oFid
RFR AN SR GGG SRGG) SR g SR 0an
Casl:
Right ot use asseks recognised as of 1 January
29 o adeqrion aF1FRE 16 {role 5) 32,663 53.190 291 2 692 89036

Additions - - 623 623

Asof 31 Decomber 2H9 32,603 33,190 491 3315 89,659

Accwmudeated deprecieion:

Charee for the year 1,472 17,170 123 1,1 14 20,374
Asof 31 Decereber 2019 1,472 17,170 123 1,114 20,379
Mot AO0K GHaRaes
AL21 December 2009 M,691 36024 368 1,21 64281
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Coempany) and its
subsidiarics

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At3 1 December 2019

8 RIGUT OF LUSE ASSETS (toutinued)
During Lhe year, depraciation of right-ofeuscassess of SR 20,382 thousurd have been reengnised in conselidated statement ncome
and other comprehensive ncoms.

9 EMPLOYLES T.OANS

Emzlovees’ loars represent nomeinterest bearing heusing loans provided to Saudi empluyees and are seeured by MOorigage Ovir
sroperty pachased vnder the amalevee bome ownership pragear. The loans are repayable in meathly Installments witkia g
meximum period of 13 vears. The installmects dee wizhin one vear arc included ‘n prepayrents and other -
wesels. The carrying value at the reporting date presented as fol.owing;

Mvables under current

2014 2018
AR OO A KRV
Non-curent pertion - presented wider nor-current g5y sl 138,978 128,464
Currenl portion - preseated under epayments and oller rece™vaales mote 12) 29 %44 27744
168,922 156,208

10 TRABE RECEIVABLES
2019 2008
SR "oem SR "Gg0”
=31) days, 871 665 1,028 355
31-60) days 32,620 5690
O 190 days 1,812 1,320
906,097 1,035,382

I Asal 31 Decevlor 2014 and 31 Decerrbar 2018, none of the sezounts reccivahle were impaired.

M2 Trade receivables are non-inlerest bearing and -he Group's eradit period is 30-66 days afler which trade receivanles are
consitdered to be past due. Unimpicred frsle reeeivables ere ursesured and are expeeted, 0 the busls of past experience. 1o
be fully recoverable,

11 INVENTORIES

2010 21008

SR 00 WE 0T

Spires 423,005 411,506

Finished roods 357,78 >30.403

Clatalyst, chemicals acd additives 135,319 32,7498

Rew materlals (note 11.1) 1,699 T8

917,803 1,105,457

f47 The Group purchuses i raw materials primarily om three suppriers including o al®lawes in te Xingdert of Saudi
Azubiu.

12 Prepuyments and other receivables 2019 24118

SRT000T SR "0ggr

Brepuymenis M,173 27,429

Lmployees’ loans - carrenl cortizm (nose §3 29,944 27,722

Vialue added receivalyes, net 17.321 31,732

Cush mergin grainst hank guarartes 2,204 2.264

Avccrued interest income 245 5,780

Recoweruble insuranue claim - 136,754

Cash margin againgt ssuwance of Subuk fnote 2¢0) - 16,458

Orther receivables 1,614 8739

85,557 156.922
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A. Saudi Joint $iock Company) and its

subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATIEMENTS {continued?

At 31 Dzeember 2019

13 RELATED FARTIES' TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Relzled partes represent major sharcholders. directors and key management persomel of the Grown, and entities controlled, *ointly

controled or significantly iflucnced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these ransactions are approved by the Group's

[mungEsmenL.
a The tollowiny are che major related partics' tramsactions :
Muwre ol AT 2018
Relaied partics Rulalionship  transections SR"000” SR 00"
Saudi Tndustrial Tnvestmen
Cirnp Campuny Shareholder  Support services 760 45
Saudi Creveem Phillips Cantpany Related perly  Sulcs 203,540 261,203
IPurc ases 69,349 19 804
Suppirl services 313,410 341334
Jubail Cheveon Phillips Compary Related party Sales 302,415 374858
Pure hases 1,064,058 I,.97.6%
Support services 853 _
Cheveen Philiips Chemical Releted parly  Hovally (note 25) 31323 57,448
Clhievron Phillips Chemical
Globet Fraployment Compuny 1.0 Releted party - Supporet services 72,818 77.63%
Chevror Phillips Chemical Marketing toes
[rernatonal Sules LLC Related narty {nota 16) 159,748 317.231
Support sersices 10,253 7,283
Chemical Sevvices T, Related varly  Support services 18.743 17,487
Chevron Phillips Chemicals Irternationad Tnc. Related varty  Support services 401 668
Chevron Phillips Chemicals International MUY, Related parly Support services TGS TER
Chevron Phillips Chemical Asia Pte Limied. Related narty - Support services 604 593
Chevron Phillips (Stanghail Com. Relared parly  Support servicss 390 2EG
CPCGlobal Employriwent Compuny 1LE Related party  Support services 634 1.309

(mote 4 1) The Group entered inlo & common facilitics agresment (the “Azreement™ with Saudi Cheveen Phillips Company
prrsuant i which, affilate provides support services ta the Group in operations and maintenance, management support and

tzchaical suppest.

(hote 0.2) The Group eriered et o rovalty agrestaert {the "Agreement™) with Ckevron Phil'ips Chemical Cempany 110 in prior
yoars wnder which the reluted perly charged the rovalry for the sse ol polvmeriration progesses.

{note a.31 The non-controlding purloer of Sawl? Poyrers Company (a coaseldazed subsidiary ) have provided non-interest bearing
e & Ly K P )

subordinuted Toan of SRCLT31L.7 milian in prior yours to finarce the construction of a pelrochersical plant. The repayment of the
-4 1 sukiect to cortain covenarte bho'ng met under ths Lerms of commercial loan fueil’tes fnote 183, The Groap has repaid 82 045

millicn i current wnd prior years,
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National Petrochemical Company (letrochem} (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its

subsidiaries

NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AL 3L December 201%

i3 RELATED PARTIES' TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES {continued)

b The fallowing are the related parties’ ending balances:

bt AMOUNLS e frons relatecd parifes weddr curven! assets;
19 2008
SR "ooe SR 000"
Sacdi Chesron Phillips Company 184,988 172,631
Jubail Chevron Phillips Compary 52,233 48 H43
237,226 23132

b2 Amawus due o related parties under current abiiities:
2019 2018
SR "aao" SR 00"
Tutail Chevren Philips Company 99,383 86,574
Saudi Chavron Plips Compansy 65,509 72187
Chevran Phielips Chereical Trius s Sales 110 41,903 AR.200
Saudi Industrial Investment Group Company 1,169 d09
Chesron PEillips Chemical Crlobal Emaloyment Company LLC o 2,261
208,054 205.581

e The following are the key managemend persoonel compensation:

Key management personnel represen: bourd members, direciors and key personnel o U the Croup. Bemuneration lor the year ended

31 December 2079 and 31 Decerlar 208 of key management of the Groop are Jdetailed 23 Tollows:

2019 HITR
SR sROGpgT
Short-terie eroployees' banei™t 15,397 18.425
Termira. benelis 1,522 2376
1741% 20801
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cush and cash eo tivalents sonsist ol the fallowing:
2015 18
SR 000" SR OGO"
Buck balines 2,349,617 L7653
Shert-erm deposiis 136,000 2, 75,000_
2,485,617 3251,537

Skort-tenm deposits which neld as cash egquivales represen: bank deposity are placed with local and Doreign banks in Saadi Rival
and LS Dellae respectively, witle cogioel maturides of botween coe day and thiree mwonths, dependiog oo toe imemediaw casa

requirements of the Group, and sarm mterest sl the respeclive shori-term deposit rites.

Part of tae Girnun’s cash and cesh equivalerts amonnting t SR 2,008 million (31 December 2008 SR 2,097 milliony sre assigmed
as seeurity against logr facilies from consotizns of cornmercizl banks and Public Investment Fucd ("P1I") {ses note 18). This

includes SROT 191 million 3370 December 2018: 82185 milllon) related to debi service regairemants.



National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its

subsidiaries

NOTES 1O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS {continugd)
ALS| December 20014

15 SHARE CAPITAL

The share apital 2r canting to $R 4,800 miltion is divided it 480 million shares of SR 10 each as of 31 December 2019 und

31 Brecemaer 20148,

16 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Saudi Arubian Regulations for Compunics, 16% ol ne- Ineame tor the vear {5 required o be transfened

e The stalitory reserve until the balanee in the reserve squals 30% of the share capital, [his roserve 5 oot nomealy available
. 1 ! X

for distribution except in cinamstances speeiffed in (he $audi Arazian Compunics Regulations.
17 NUN-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

{70 Proparfion of equity interests nebd by non-contralling interests are as Tollawirg:

Nerwie Cowntr: of ineorporation 2019 28
Saudi Polymars Comnpany Suudt Arabia 33% RAy
Gull Polymers Disribution Company Urited Arsh Tmirates 35" 35%
1.2 Vollewing ure the meverert of non-controlling iclerests durirg the vesr:
2048 2058
S o RY e
At the beainning vl the year 3648431 1.037.340
share i el resylly 343,60 334, BeE
share in other comprebensive {loss) inzome {03,992} 9,833
Ineome tax reimzarsed by nun-eont-olirg partner 123,671 H6,370
Al lae esd af the year 4,191,801 3,648,431
15 TERN LOANS
Mg e
Currrent Lffective interest rate Maturity SR 000 SR 00"
Comsortiem of commercial banks (note 13,1} Limor + 1.05%, [5-Dec-20 497,396 317,770
Consort'em of commercial banks inote (8.2} Litor - 0.06% 15-Dew-20 221.250 177,000
Funlic Tnvestments Fund (P25 ) inote 18,3 Lilio +10.30% F=Des2( 3779 480,000
Saudi Industriv] Developraent Fund (STDT} {note 18.4y L% B-Aqr-20) 1011000 206,002
1,210,425 1,374,772
2019 2018
Nod-currend Fffective inferesi ritie Maiurity SR "000T SR OO0
Consorttam of commercial Darks (moge 18.1) Libor + {1.05% - 1.7 3%) 2021 -2023 2,673,505 3,300,777
Consartium of commersial packs (note 18.2) Libor - 006% 20272023 765,108 1,031,933
Public lnvestments Fuad (P1F) (rote 18.3} Libor + (.30% - 424,849
Saud: Industzial Developmerl Fund {31019 (note 18.4) 1004 - S 002
343613 4,857,557
Less urarrtized trensaction costs (_.'5,4?8) {6.637)
1435138 4.850.020
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National Petrochemical Company {Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries
NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved}
At31 Decomber 2019
1] TERM LOANS (cootinued}
Tha movement 0 wnemorlived tarsaction costs in respeet of hese Tinancing faciliiies i3 as fulows:
2019 Z018

SR 000" SR G
Cosfs:
At | Januars and 31 Necember 238369 238,360
Amariization:
At January 231,732 226,312
Charge For the vewr (note 29) 3,155 5,400
At 31 December 234,891 231,732
Ralance at 31 Diecember 3478 a.037

27 The Group oblained commereial loan facilities of SR 7.045.9 million (2018: SR 7,045.9 millian] from a eonzortivem of
comuperciul banks which was fully drawn al the reporting dade (2018; [lully drewnl, The loan is secured by the
wssi prment of residua] procecds o project bank accounts, pledge and assignment aver onshers projec] bank accolrls
(201%: sam2). The loan 's repavable in 22 successive semi-annual installments varving, from 2% ta 20 of the facilities
ulilieed, comnmeneed feom 13 June 2503, Accordingly, the poriZon ol the [oan pavable before 1 January 2027 bas been
classificd under vurrert lighilivics, The facilities are subject g3 interest at LIBOR plus g margin progressively inereasing

from 080 to 1.153% over the 11tz of ~he leans.

82 The Group obtained a losn fuciliy of SIL2,212.5 million (2018 SR 2,212.5 willion) from 4 consoriium of commercial
banks. The Gacility is goaranteed by the Lxport-lopoct Bank of the 1S, At the reporting Zate the loan was fully drawn

(2008, flly drwe}, The lows is seeure] by D agsipnoeent of e

dual proceeds of plant and zqaipment, charge zrd

asiignmient veer sceured project doceracrts, charge and assignment over offshore peo’ect bank accounts, pledge snd
assignment over onshore project bank accounts {201 8: same). The ioan iz repayzble in 22 successive senti-unnusl
insratlicenrs varying from 3% ta 834 af the facilities ntilized, commenced Troea 15 e 2013 Accondingly, the portion
of loan payable belore [ JTanuary 2021 has been clessificd wnder current lisbilitics. The facililies are subject Lo interesl

at  IROR plus 5.06%,

5.3 The Group obtaired a term loan Zeility of SR 3,600 million (2008 82 3,000 villioed from 1Y which was Tully drawn
at the repasting dase (208 lly drawnr). The loan is secured by assipnment of residual proceces of plat and
equipnen;, chargz aad assigiunert ove: secared puoject documents, charge and assignment cver effshore project bank
accounts, pedge and assignment aver gnsave preject bank accounts (2008 same} Tha doun is repayable in 15 ball
vaatly installnants. The first twe instzlIments were 1% eack, and the remaining 13 imsteliments al the rate o 7% to 595
of the aotire loan aiilized, comenced from 31 December 200 3, The loan 1s subjecl G inlerest al TIBOR plus 0.53%

glong with an upfront fee 20{.2% of Eae principal amount o lean.

184 The Group alsoe obtained two loan Thcilities of SE 600 million cach (2018: SR 400 million cack) from SIDF for

tinancing the consteuction at the petrachor’cal plant, A the reporting date hoth tacilities were fully drave (2018

Ful'y

drawn). The Teans are secured by Fens or tha CGrocp's plan and squipreent for the Bthylene, Metathesis, 1- hexene, and
Polzethylene units, and assignment of insurance proceeds and technology rights (201 8: same). The loans aro repavable
in 14 halt vearly irstzllmerts at the rate varving rrow &.17% to 8.33% of the faciiitics utlized, cormenced from |8

Iecember 20013 The loans were sthject to en upfromt fee of 7.5% of the principal ameurl of two lean fagilidies,
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOTES TO THE CONSOLTDATED FINANCIAL STATLEMENTS {continued)
AL3] December 2019

18 TERM LOANS {(conlinned)

145 Folowing we the combined aggrogate amcunts of rext five wears' maturitics of the erm Ioans a: the consolidated
statemen: of financial pasition dae:

2019 2018
Years SR "o0o" SR
2015 . 1373772
20020 1,210,425 1,263 867
2021 762,840 783,268
2422 931,500 LT
2023 1,744,217 1,853,462
Total 1,649,038 6,232,229
186 The Group is required to comply with ceriain covenants under al the loan feetlity agreements mentinned above,
19 NON-CONTROLLING PARTWER'S STRORDINATED LOAN 2319 28
SRO00T SRNGET
Non-centrolling parner's subordizawd loun 182_169{‘_ 413927

Non-conlrolling pactnet's subordinated loan s repayuble zubject to certain covenarts heing met under the ievrs ol the
commercial loan facilitigs.

8¢ The movenwnt in non-contmolling pertner's sabordinaied loan was as tollows:

201% 201%

SR SR "000"

At 1 January 413,927 817088
Moot inieres: charge for the vear {nnte 2493 14,527 42,189
Kemeasurement gein (nide 24 [3.508) -
Paymer.t Ziring the vear {236.250) (b, 2541)
AL3T December 182,696 4134927

0 SUKUK

Un 25 Rha'aban 1435t {cerresponding to 23 June 20140, the Campany tssued Sukul amoenting w SR 1.2 billier a: par valee
of B8R 1 million each without discount or premiven. The Subck issued hed a variable rate of retuen at SIBOR plus 2. 7% margin,
Uwus payahle semi-antually, The Sazuk were due at per value on ‘is matirin dase of 20 Shawwal 144011 (corresponding i 23
June 2014,

On 15 Ramadan 143911 (corresponding Lo 3 June 2018), thz Board ol Directars resolved o respurchase ke issued Sukuk.
Accordingly, the Company re-purchased part of the issued sukok amouating to SR 122 millipn. The Company repaid the
remaining Saxuk during the year

In accordance wit the Sukak aeement dated 25 Sha'han 14251 (cortesponcing to 23 June 20147 an amoun: of SR 6.5
million waz deposited as a casn margin neld by Riyad Caplal Cotpacy 1o wn vper sceount wn bebll of the Sukukholiders”
Agent oot 12), 1he vash aurgtn previously held by Rivad Capital Coreny was released during te year.

21 LEASE LIABILITY 209 I8
SR "oon* SE 000

Nott-currerdt s2,0047 -
Carrent 12417 -
65,014 .

e GTOLI.I.‘ has used svelghiad AWETLE D0 J. cremental bommowing rule of 3.453% for caLlculaﬁr.g the Tresent wvalue of the lcasc
= & & £
lithilitivs.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOTLES 11O THE CONSO_LTDAI']",D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued)

At 31 December 2019

12 EMPLOYEFS' BENEFITS

In accordance with the provisions ol TAS 19, management has carried oUt an exercise w assess Lhe preseal value of its defined
henefil obligations at reporting date in respoet of employzes' benefis puyvable under relzvent local regulations aid contractua’
arargemerts. The main auctuarial assumptions usad te caleulate te unfunded delined benefit obiization are s Sollows:

201y 2018
Discount rate 3.3% 4.5%
Expected rate o sy inoreasc 4.0% 4094

The gresent viues of tae defined kenciit oblizatons at reporting date were computed using the actuarial assumptions set eut
aboywe,

201y 01X

SR ne RIS

Presznt value of defined benefit obligation 190,513 191,23%
Re-measurement "oss {zain) on defined benefit plans 40,649 (28,151
Balance as ar 31 December 131,162 63087

The: breek wp ol net benet™t costs charged 1o consoliduled statement of income and arther compreaensive income is as ollows:

2119 2ME
SR "po0t S8 Tnne
Current service eos: 20,824 245413
Interest cost o benetit ehligation Tals f, 23t
28,439 RItRE SN
221 Re-mwedsuremenl 083 (pain) on detined henefit plans arose due to the tallowings:

1019 2018
SR "ago* SR
Actuerial losses arising fFom changes ‘o demegrapkic ssumptioas - f.447
Actuaridl lusses (gaing) arising from chanzes in Mnancial assunptions 36,106 {18,848)
Exorierce djusimenls . 543 14,233
Mot henefit 1954 {guin) 40,449 {28,151

222 Movement ir the mresent value of delned urfanded bene!Tt oblimation is ag follows:
29 2018
SR 00" SR oo
At 1 Tanuary 163,087 165,379
Net benefits charee [or the vear 28,439 749
Benelits peid (1,013) (4.8911)
Re-measarement loss {gain) on defired benefit plans 40,649 (28,151}
At31 December 231,162 163,087




National Petrocheruical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued}

At 31 December 2019

22 EMPLOYLEES' BENETITS (continued )

223 ‘Tha quantitative sensilivity analysis lor signilicant sssumptions as a1 the reporting date is a3 follows:

Lncrease/ 2019 2008

(decrease) SR T YIS

Discount rake 0.25% (8,146) [5.142)
(0.Z5%) 8,599 2744

Expocled rate of salary incredse 0.25% 3,518 3,753
(0.25%) (8,111} {3,480

sensibivily analysis above have been determined biased on w methiad thut extapolades e impuct on the defined benefiz
ehlization a5 a result of seasonable cagnges in key assumptions occurring @ the end of the reporting perioc. “Fhe sensitivity
analysis ere bused on a change in a signiticant assunption, <ceping all other aszux plions consiant. The sensitivily analysis mey
nut bz representative of an actual chanpe in the detined henetits abliparion as it 's urlikely that changes in assumptions would
cecur inisclation of one another,

224 lhe following paviments ave expected contributions 1o the defined benafit plan in “uture vears:

2019 2018

SR "000" SR ool

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting perioc) 6,553 3304
Beotweer 2 and 5 yoars 29,032 31,988
Beyond 5 years 46,395 64,372
Total expected payments 82,180 100662

225 lhe uverage auration of the defived benefit plan obligation at the cnd of the reporting period is 5.9 yeurs { 2018: 152
yeary),

23 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLLS

019 8

SR Yopt SR

Accried exnenses 243,368 438,188
Advenees {iom cusimuers 29,02y 63,645
Othee payables 65,427 103.371
337,824 #1520

230 lemms anc conditions o7 -he financial Tahilitges:

v Other pavazles ars non-interest bearing ansd v an average term ol six months.




National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stoek Company} and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

AL31 Decembaer 2019

24 ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX PROVISIONS

The Group is subject 1o 2okad und inceme tax in sccordance with the regataticn of the General Authority of Zaka and Tncoms
Tax (“CAZ1™). Provisions 7or zukat and tax are charged Lo the consolidatec stalement of income and otksr COMPrIIensive
ineeme. The Company and its subsidiary (Saudi 2olymess Coempany) are 1iling separats zakat énd income tex declerations with
Gasl

01y 2018
SR 000" SR OO
[igems {1 releted 1 nonegontro_ling parner (ron-Saudi parner) in Saudi Fotymers Company
CHurrenr jay 52,133 Y720
Defarred fox 15,218 15015
7,351 132141
Zaxat relaed to National Peirgohemical Company 30,456 54,753
Zael relazed Lo Sacdi Polymers Compary 40,344 43,867
TO,800 Y8,620
Zuzet and Zroome ax chgrgs 138,151 230,761
‘The major compenents ¢l incomo Lax expense and cukat for the vear ended 31 Decenber are as follows:
240 Icome Tax
019 2018
SR M0 SR "OOC”
Current income tax obarge (nofe 24.2) 52,140 47,108
Adjustment ia respeet of current income tax of provious year B (7} 14
52,133 97126
Deferred tax
Relaiing to oryinutdon and reversa. of tereparare d fTerences 15,218 15.015
[rcome sax reported in the consolidated staaman oUineome and other comprchensive incoms 67.351 137,141

4.2 Current incore 1ax expense
‘I'he current income tax expensc lor the year eaded 31 Decomber 2019 5 caleulated at jnsome tax rate of 20 % (ZIM K 20%).

24,32 Effective income £ax vate reconciliatinn

Z0rY 201 2018 2018

SH 000 %% SR "00" %o
Accounting profil related o Siwdi Polvmers Company
CSPCO) hefere tax atlributable 1o non-controlling
pariner in $PC (aon-Seudi parmer 343,392 611,499
Tax al the applicablz ratz @ the income related to nou-
corvrolling pavtner in SPCO {non-Saudi partner} 68,678 20% 122300 20%0
Tax effect on the defored incame tax rale and the cxpenise
that @ve net deductible {or v durposey {1,327) €0.4%) 4,841 1.6%:
Taw churged dutiesg the year in consolidated statement of
income and other comprenzng've income 67.351 19.60% 132,141 2L60%,

Y]
B =



National Petrechemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its

subsidiaries

NCYTES TGO THE CONSGLIDATEDR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
At 31 Lecember 2019

24 ZAKATAND INCOME I'AX PROVISIONS (conlinued)

244 Deferred tax

Deferred income Laxes reflect the net tax effect of lemporary difTerences belween the cerrving amounis of assets and liabililies
o Anamciad reporting purnoses and the ameums wsed Gor e parpeses. Major components ol defiered tax Hability and wssel of

SPCO at the yeuar ond were,

2009
SR 000"
D Ferrect feie tability

2018
SR "0

Property, plant and eguipment o 18074 735,395
Total deferred tax Jiability 7584074 755,395
Deferred tax assers
Emplayees™ benelits 15,467 10,826
Taxable loss carry forward 416,354 433,714
Toul deferred 1ax z2asel 431,801 dadd =40
et delrred tax HuabilZiy 326,273 311,053
242 Fakai
Charge for (he vear
Thz 7akat charge relating 1o the Group cons'sts af:
2019 2018

SR oo0" SROCHT

Charge Tor ke vear 70,800 98 620

246 Movement in the zakat and incame tax provisions and deferred tax liahilities are as Tollows:

A8 Devewmher 20119

Zakat and income tax provisions

Deferred fax

Cuerent tux Zakar Tora? fiabilifics, nef

SR "ioan SR 0007 SR "ppan SR "hoot

Ar | Jenuary 64,125 521,552 SB5,477 31L55
Charpe for te vear 52,133 70,300 122,933 13218
Paximenits dunng (e yoar (112,676) (30,056) (142,732) -
AL T Deceribe 3,582 62,296 565,878 326,273

2 December 20018

Leskat? gl IR e lax prevviviong

Dacferred tav

Curreni fax Faket Todaf tiahilsties, nei

SR 000" SETOO0T SR oo SE 000"

At 1 Tanuary 43 958 416,544 4800502 270,040
Chaspe for the year EN i Y8620 195 746 32012
PFaxments during the yeer {76,954 (13,612} (20,571 -
At 3} December 14,125 521,352 585.677 311055
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National Petrochermnical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarigs

NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2076

24 ZAKAT AND INCOMIE TAX PROVISIONS {continued)

24.7  Status of assessments

Status of enssessments of Natioral Pe rrochemical Company (Petrochen

The Company has [Ced s Zakat and Income Tax retans with the General Authority of Zakal ard Tax CGAZT™) up 1o 2018,
It Company has finaliscd its zakat staws with the Gueeral Autherity of Fakal und Tax (GAZT™) for all veurs up to 3]
December 2000 an a stendalote basis. B umber of additional lahility have hoan fssued by GAZT as %ol ows:

The GAZT raised assessinerts Lor ihe years Srom 2011 to 2013 claiming addittonal zakel lability of SR 95.5 million, The
Compacy has led un appeal against the zdditior al zakat lability with the Preiiminary Appea. Comminee ( PACT), The
Compary recelved Tovised zakat assessmenty for (e vewrs rom 201 | te 2013 fom GAZT claiming addiiional wakal Fabilizy of
SI 574 million, The Compary sceepted and peid SR 3.47 mllion and filed a1 appea’ [or the remainire balanes SR 227
miliion with the Higher Apneal Comonittee ("HAC™) and Lhe 1A 5 Leariag I uwa'ted.

GAY raised w1 ussessments for the vears trom 2014 1o 2016 clalming adiditicnal zakal lisbility of” SR 204.2 million, The
Compary s filed an appeal against the add’tional zukar liab ity with the Preliminary Anpeal Commicte {("PAC"Y and she
PAC S hearing is awailed. The asscssoents Fom 2017 and 2008 =61 under GAZT™S review,

The Company’s management believes that e provision made in the consalicated siatements of finseeial position 15 adeguale
to cover any additional zakut liability thai may arise from (QA7T.

Statns of assessments of Sandl Folvmers CUovpoony

The subsidiary bas fifec its zukit and incore ux retums with g General Authorlty of Zakal and Tax (GAZT?) up 1o 2018,
Ihe asssment for (he pericd caded 31 December 2008 has buer finalised with €A1 with nil lizbility. The assesscients for
ke years irom 2009 trough 201§ have nol yol been raised by GAZ

Zuxat base has heen computed Jased an the manuguinenis’ understanding of the zakar cgulations enforeed in the Kin adom of
Suuci Arahia, The sakat segulutiens in Saudi Arabia are subject ta different iresprewtons. The agsessments [ be raisad by

GAZT coulit be dilferent feom the declarations filed by the Cocpanies in Suudi Arabia,

Steitus eof wssgssmentts of Gt Polvmers Distribuion Company Fr00

"l subsidiary registered in €42 Tubal Adrport Free Zonc and the subsidiary Ty sxenpred fom irconte tax.
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National Petrochemical Company {Petrochem) (A Saudi Toint Stock Company) and its

subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

A3 December 20100

25 COST OF SALES

Cost of material consumed

Depreciation {noe 71

Ulilities. supplics and scrvices

Suppinl services reckarged by atfillates (notz 13)
Eroplovee's benefils expense

Rovyalty (oo 13)

Contract semviges

Other

P SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSFES

Murkueting fees (nee 1)

Freizi: and dismiowian

Terrinating and wirchousing

ey nyes's benelis expense

Support serviees reenarged by at¥iliates (note 13)
Other

27 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIYE EXPENSES

Suppor services rechierped by afliliates fnote 13)
Remurerations of bourd of directors and ke pevsonnel (note 13)
Employer's derofils expanse

Deopraciation (rote 7)

Rank charpes

Professional fies

Other

SR "Hou

2019 018

SR "DOO" SR 00"
3,420,544 3,903,709
¥50,792 1,104,585
607,519 332,782
206,224 313,826
203,400 192,600
51,323 51.488
48,371 63,704
74,543 62,670
5,558,716 £,224,959
2019 2018

ST

259,748 317,231
70,234 0, 821
57,627 81,934

8,128 7,575
5,145 -
20,849 4057
421,931 471,618
2019 2008

SR "o SR 000"

118,242 134,390
17,419 20,301
10,597 17047
9325 111859
6,212 6,467
S66 Q29
12,199 13,628

174,580 245,800




National Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its

subsidiarics

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (continued)

At 31 December 2019

28 OTHER INCOME,NFT

Commission income

(il insurance claitm

Eomossurerent gain of non-conteolling partner’s subordinced loan (e 143
Forvign curreney exchange loss

(lher, net

29 FINANCE €OSTS

Tigrest on erm Inans

Twg-est on Sukuk

brerest on non-contralling pariner's sehordi nated loan (notg 14
Izerest cost e hanetitoblipation (note 223

Amorlization of traasaction costs on termn loans {note 13)
Interest on lease labilities (pote 33

Discounting eof emplovess' laps granted during the wear

Other service chamges

k] EARNINGS PER SHARE

2019 2018

$R 000" SIL oogn
77,757 58,346
11,768 186,786
5,508 .
{6,64%) 119,740}
9,776 6,255
98,160 231,648
2019 01K
SRo00" SR O0T
171,224 203,160
24,788 49,692
10,527 47,189
7.6k 6,206
3.159 5,400
2,072 =
1,061 1,77%

880 L)
221,326 300,373

Rasic carrings por share agwunis cre valeulated by dividing net ineome tor the vear atiributable - sharchelders af the

Company by the wa'ghted average number of shares duting the vear.

T'he fullowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluwed eamnings per share computations:

Net income antribitable to sharehwlders of the Clompany (318600

Weighted avetage aumber of ordinay shares (0O600)

Basiv znd diluted curnings por strre atriautable o he shavebolders ot the Conpany

‘There has been no it of difution alleting the weightod average cumber of ordinary shares,
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iy 2018
674,4M) 1,162,382
480,000 480000
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Natienal Petrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudl Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

INQTLES TO TEHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Al December 2019

A CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group 1as autherised fure capital experdimure arreunting 1¢ SR 83 million {31 Decenner 2018 SR 133 milllon) relaring
Gt certaln expansion projecls.

2 CONTINGENCEES

Dhuring 2016, (e Compuny arl the nom controlling partner in Suudi Polyoners Company (a consolidated subsidiare ragsolved o
irerease the capital of Saudi Polymers Company by SR 3,294 million, which will cause the non-conto'ling partner to incar
additional costs; the managenent of the Company has aprecd 1o compensale the non-cantrolling partner by muking annial
raymerts v the fithies besed on the fuimee canings of Saudi Polymars Comipaty, considering the non-distributable cash as a
result of the proposed capital inerease. During the vear erded 31 December 2009, trwe pasticr ol $PCCY (the Company and the
non-contro Ting) g resolved o Ceerease the share capital of SPCO with he same amount. The legal process ot tie reduction
‘o capitel nzs not heen complerad 6l tha year 2nd.

‘Lhe Uroup®s bankers has issued guarantees, en benalt o-'the Croup, ameunting to SR 429 mitlion {31 Decernber 200 8: SR 389
Tiilion) relating 2o unlist of fredstock for plert frome a sioplier and zakat appea’s.

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICTES

‘The Growp’s principal iinancial labilitics comprise louns and borrowings, trude and other payables. The main purpose of these
finuncial liahilitics is o fnance the Group's operations and w provide pudraniees 1o support (s operations. Lhe Group’s
priccipal financial asseta include emplayees' loans, trade and other reesivables, short term deposiis and cash and cush
squivalerns that decive directly from its operations. The Group's smatagement reviews and wirees policics Sor tnanaging cach of
thise risks which are summgrized Delow,

‘The Group ‘s exposed w market risk. credit Ask and liguidity tisk. The Group™s senfor management oversees the manaprement
of these risks. The Gronp's aenior management sepulacly review the policies and procedurss W ensure tha all the Mnancial dsks
are identided, measuzed and 2anazed in acconmlance with L Group’s pelicics und risk objzclives  The Grocp does nol engege
intg 2ny hedging, activities, The Board of Directers reviews and agrees policies for munaging caeh af these risks, which are
suramarized belaw.

3.t Market risk

Maret rigk is the sk that the [aic veloe of s cash flows of a financial Instrumen; will Zucivate becaise of changes in
miarket prices. Murket eisk comprises three types of visk: interest rate tisk, fer="gn carrercy risk and commodily price risi.
Finarcial instraments effected by marke: sk ineludke Loans and borrowwings as well as bank balances. The sensitivity anzhysis in
the tallowing sections welate to the position as al 31 December in 2019 and 31 December 2078,

fei) finte vt e pish

Interest rate misk is the risk Lhal the tair value or fvaee casy flows of a fiaancial instrument Wil uctuste because of changes in
marketinlerest rales. Thie Groun™ exposure o the risk of changes in marke; interest rates relates to sukuz and long-terer Jdebt
obllgations with fouwlimy ‘rierest rates. The intzrest rate visk 15 partially miteated by interest income, which Groun earns at
fleatifiy interest rates from its bank deposits.

The Inllowing tuble demonsirates the sensitivity of statement ot comprebensive incoma to -sa3orable passible changes in
interast races, witk all other varizble held coastant.

Increases Ftect on
deeree In profit
basis points before tax
SR OO

-51) 59,128

e +50 (59,128)
2008 =30 97,253
150 [97.253)
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National Petrochemical Company {(Pctrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {zontinued)
At 31 December 20 .9

33 FINANCTAL RTSK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (centinued)
1317 Market risk {continued)

bt Farelgn Currancy visi

Forelgr curreroy risk is the risk tiat the fair value or fature cash flows of a fin L imstument will Tuctuate because of
changes in forelgn cochange rates, The Group deals mainly in Sandi Rival (SR and 17% S0 Ay the SROIs pogeed 1o the US §,
belences in U5 § are not corsidered to represent significant currencey risk.

fed Comnrodiie peice risk

The Groun s exposed to the impact of market fluctuations of the price of varlous inpuls to production including naphtha,
bensens nitural gax and electrieity. The Greug prepares annual budgets aud perfodic forccasts inciuding seasitivity analyses in
respect of varlous levels of zrude olf prices to macage the risk. The rivs {s partic )y ridpated by Hoctaations in the commodity
prices of the Group's finished products (i.o. Polypropylene and Polyelaylene],

337 Creditrisk

Credil, rish is the risk il cae party W & financial instrament will fail to disckarpe an obligetion and cause the other party to
incur @ tinancial loss. The Chouap s exposed o credit rsk o its cusb and cush cquivalents, short wim deposits, irade
recaivablos, emonnts doe from refated patios and cmployees’ Tows as Tolows:

2019 2018

SR "poov S12 Do0”

Emplovees oans 168,922 156,208
Amounts due rom related parties 137216 221,326
l'tade rsceivables 906,097 1,035,382
Cash und cash cquivalents 2,485,017 3,251,537

3,797,802 4,664 453

The Cirous manapes its eredit risk with respect to the customers by dualing with customers having reliable ceedit history,
senr' ey Bigh quatily celiaeral when necessary and by monitoring outslanding salances and with respzct to banks by only
dealing with reputable banks.

333 Liguidity risk

Ligu'city risk is the visk that the Group wi'Tencounger di Ty in eaising funds to meeet finarcial conunilments associated with
fnuncial irstruments, Liguidity risk may resull frem an inabiliv w reslize Gnaeial gesets guick’y al an amoont olose to iss “&ir
value. The Group manages it lgquiciny risk by monitoring working capita. and cask flow requirements on replar bass and
cnsiring that avai ot of bark facilitics, as and ifrequestad. “The Group's terms of contracls require amounts 1 be paid within
J0-90 diys ol the date of billings, Trade payanles are cormally seilled within 30-45 days of billing dawe or receipt ot a corvectly
rendered invoice.




National Potrochemical Company (Petrochem) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiarics

NOTES TO THFE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continucd)
AL 31 December 2019

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (enntinued)
333 Liguidicy risk (conlinned)

Lhe table below summarizes the mawrities of the Group's wnilseounted Snancial larisites at reporting date, based on
cvmntraciual mayment dases and current niatleat inlerest rules.

3 December 2619

On  lessthan 3

requested months Yo 12 months 1t 5 yeqrs = F yeary Tatal
SR o0t SR 000" SR 00 HR 00" SR "'00¢" SR
Terw loans - - 1,210,425 3.438.613 - 4,6494013%
Non-uontreding partces
subordinaed loan - - 182,696 - 182.0%0
Trade payabies - 203,467 - - - 203,467
Accrued expenses und olher
prayables - " 337824 - - 337,824
Amounts duz 1o relawed pariies 208.054 - - - - 208,654
208,054 203 467 L58249 3621309 - 5SRILDT
3 Decembar 2618
On  Less than 3
requested mOntfs 3 (0 17 moaihe { 2o 3 vears w5 vears Tirta!
SR 000" SR 000" SIeenT SR SR ONGT SRn00
Lerm vars - - 1374772 S BITANT - 6,332,329
N zomieulling partner's
subordineled loun - = - H13.527 413,977
Sukuk - 1,078,000 - [REEEAONG
Trade payadles - 37,452 - - - 37,962
Acorued expenses and other
payables - - (03,204 - - 605,204
Armounts e to roelated parties 200,581 - - - - Z08.381
20,581 3TR62 3037978 5,_2-? 1484 - AT

334 Excessive risk cnncentration
Cencentrulions arise when 2 nurier of coutterpariies cre <ngs

sed inosimilar usimess welivilies, or activities in the same
geograsaical region. or have economic thamres that would sause heir zhility Lo mecl contrucisad obligations <o e similarly
atteced By changes in economiv; political oz viker conditions, Concenteations indicate the relative secsitvity of the Group's

perfarmance to developrients eIfecting a particular industry.

333 Capital management
Faorthe purpoese of the Group™s cepizal managemant, capital includes share capizel and all otaer cquily reserves astribuazle w
the camers ofthe Group, The primary abjeeiive of the Group's capila! management is ta maximize the shareholder vakie.

The Group manages is canital strocture and makes adjustnews i light of changes in economic enndizons and the
requitements of 1he financiul covenurts. To maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the CGrap may adjust the dividend payment
e shareholders. return capital 1o shurchelders ov 1ssue new shares. The Group monitors capital using o goaring rutio. whicl o
net dubt divided by total capiral plus ne! debl The Group includes within act debl, term loans, trade and accrued expenses and
okher nayables and Sakuk, less bank belinoes.
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National Petrochemical Company (Petrocheim) (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) and its
subsidiaries

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIRATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continucd)
At 3] December 2019

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBIECTIVES AND POLICLES (contioned)

335 Cupital management (continued)

2019 21118
SR 004 SEC"Q00"

Terr "oars: 1,649,038 7,232,329
Sukuk - 1,078,000
Trude payab. cs 103,467 37902
Accrued expenses and other pavables 237,824 603,204
TLess: cash and cash couivalens (2485417 (3.251.537)
boet deht 2,704,712 4 701,058
Naon-controlling partne's suborcéinared loan 182,698 413,927
Lguity 12,249,795 11,384,412
Tzl equity und noa-controlling panner's subordinated lozn 12,432,491 11,502,559
Copilul and net deht 15,137,203 16,504,487
Cicaring ratin _ 22% 40%

34 FFATR VALLUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Te nanagement assessed that the Jar valaes af bank balances, shorl erm deposits, ese and ofier receivabies, trade aud other
payebles sprroximate creir catying values largsely duc to the shor-term maticities of these Jtnuncial instrumenits.

The mmanzzement has wssessed tie Rir valoe of emaloyes loans and non-corern’ling cartner's suborcinated loor ased o lovel 3
hictarchy, which is not materially dilzrent from o' respective carrying values.

The fair velues ol the Group's interest-beating bomrowings and loacs are determined by usivg the DO metbod using disconrt
rate that reflects the issuer’s dorowing rate us oo the end o7 the reperting period.

3s SEGMENT INFORMATION

lo respeet of perlormar.ce appra’sal anc allocation of resources, “he Group's managemen: is ol the wpinion that all activities and
operations vl ke Group eamprise one single cpersting seginent, Lae pelrochemical sector. Therelors, Anancial repatls A@ve
issied only for geosraphical segments,

(reug raphical sepments

Operating assels are ‘ocated tn the Kingdom of Sandi Arabia. The saies are gecgmupbicully distribeted as follows:

2019 2018

% B

Domestic/hliddle Bast pAi} 149
Ay 55 3l
Eurupe/Asrice 15 30
1430 100

36 SUBSEQLENT EVENTS

In 12 opinios of the manageme:n, there have Hean ao signilicant subsecuen events sines the period ended 31 Decerner 2019
that swould lave u malsrial impact on the consolidated financial posilion of Lhe Crowy s rellecles in these eozsolilawd
fingncial statements.
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